
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, October 27, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ....................................... Board Member Aaron Booker 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Rev. Earl Dotson, Sr., Economic Development for West side Rockford, 

benefitting the commonwealth, Pro 
 

6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of September 29, 2022 minutes  
B. Layover of October 13, 2022 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. Supervisor of Assessments, Annual Compensation:  $93,636.14 

1. Thomas Hodges (Reappointment), Rockton, Illinois, November 8, 2022 to November 8, 
2026 

B. Rockford Hebrew Cemetery Association, Annual Compensation:  None 
1. Theodore Liebovich (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, October 2022 to October 2028 
2. Jay Kamin (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, October 2022 to October 2028 

 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution to Fund American Legion Property Repairs with ARPA Phase IV Funds 
3. Resolution to Fund Children’s Advocacy Center with ARPA Phase IV Funds 
4. Resolution to Fund Habitat for Humanity Housing Plan with ARPA Phase IV Funds 
5. Resolution to Fund Northern Illinois Food Bank with ARPA Phase IV Funds 
6. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Jonathan Stoltz Versus Winnebago County 
7. Resolution Authorizing the Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Elizabeth Cook Versus Winnebago County 
8. Ordinance to Amend Budget for Crisis Co-Responder Team Program to be Laid Over 
9. Ordinance to Amend Budget for Summit Academy SRO to be Laid Over 

10. Ordinance to Amend Budget for Upgrades for EOC and an ESDA Director Vehicle to be 
Laid Over 

11. Resolution Awarding ARP Funded Administration Building Carpet Replacement 
12. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the General 

Fund to be Laid Over 
13. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the IMRF Fund 

to be Laid Over 
14. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the County 

Highway Fund to be Laid Over 
15. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the County 

Bridge Fund to be Laid Over 
16. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Federal Aid 

Matching Fund to be Laid Over 
17. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Health 

Department Fund to be Laid Over 
18. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Tort 

Judgment and Liability Fund to be Laid Over 
19. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Social 

Security Fund to be Laid Over 
20. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Veterans 

Assistance Fund to be Laid Over 
21. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Detention 

Home Fund to be Laid Over 
22. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Historical 

Museum Fund to be Laid Over 
23. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Nursing 

Home Operations Fund to be Laid Over 
24. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 for the Children’s 

Advocacy Fund to be Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

1. Z-04-22 A map amendment to rezone 5.46 +-acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the RA, Rural Agricultural Residential District (a sub-district of the RA District) 
for a portion of the property that is commonly known as 11834 Winslow Road, Durand, 
IL 61024 in Harrison Township, District 2, to be laid over 

2. Committee Report                    
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution to Grant Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) from Host Fees to the Rockford 

Area Convention and Visitors Bureau (RACVB) to Support the 2022 Stroll On State Event 
3. Resolution Approving the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds for Economic Impact 

Program for the Chairman’s Initiative Group Four (4) Projects 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Establishing the County Holiday Schedule for 2023 
3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with AmWins Group 

Benefits for the Administration of a Retiree Medical and RX Plan  
4. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Northern Illinois 

Health Plan (NIHP) for Third Party Administrative Services 
5. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Blue Cross Blue 

Shield for the Administration of a Self-Insured PPO and POS Insurance Plan 
6. Resolution to Establish the River Bluff Nursing Home Board of Directors 
                   

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (22-037) An Ordinance Establishing a Speed Zone on Lindenwood Road from Baxter 

Road to Edson Road 
Cost:  N/A        C.B. District:  9 

3. (22-038) Resolution Authorizing a Project Management Services Agreement with 
Region 1 Planning Council to Provide a Connection Feasibility Study for the East 
Riverside Multi-Use Path 
Cost:  $40,200       C.B. District:  7, 8, 20 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding New Jail Management Software 
3. Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement for Regional Board of 

Education School Resource Officer Program 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   



www.wincoil.us | Page 4  

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, November 10, 2022 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 

























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 





 

  
Appointments 

 
 



                    September 26, 2022 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Winnebago County Board Chairman  
404 Elm St. Room #533 
Rockford, IL 61101 
 
 
 
Dear Chairman Chiarelli, 
 
  It has been my honor to serve the taxpayers of Winnebago County as the Supervisor of 
Assessments for the past four years and believe that I have done so with the integrity, honesty, and 
humility that is incumbent upon the office. As my current term ends on November 15th, 2022, please 
consider this to be my formal request for re‐appointment. 
 
Since my initial appointment as the Supervisor of Assessments, I have demonstrated a strong history of 
leadership, accountability, and a dedication to maximizing tax dollar value while ensuring fair and 
equitable property assessments that are in compliance with all applicable state laws. Our office has 
made countless procedural adjustments with the goal of streaming processes and minimizing 
redundancies in an effort to provide quality services to taxpayers and meet the multitude of tax cycle 
deadlines, all while limiting costs.  
 
During the past four years, I have established and maintained excellent working relationships with 
stakeholders throughout our community and the state, including other governmental officials, township 
assessors, the board of review, and the Property Tax Division at the Illinois Department of Revenue. In 
addition, I have had the opportunity to serve as the Area 1 Chair for the County Assessments Officers 
Association and sit on the Illinois Property Assessment Institute’s State Conference Planning Committee. 
I have had the pleasure of giving numerous educational presentations to various groups including the 
Northern Illinois Council of Government, the Illinois Government Finance Officers Association, Real 
Estate Associations and the Winnebago County Board.  
 
My resume along with a certificate of educational qualification for appointment as Supervisor of 
Assessments, from the Illinois Department of Revenue, are enclosed. Please do not hesitate to let me 
know if you have any questions or need anything additional as I would be happy to discuss my 
qualifications in greater detail, if desired. I greatly appreciate your consideration.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Tom Hodges 
Supervisor of Assessments 
(x14468) 
 
 
Encl. 

Resume 
Certification of Educational Qualification 



THOMAS R. HODGES 
Hodgesfamily05@gmail.com 
207 Fairwood Pl. Rockton, IL 61072 
309-241-6938 

PROFILE  
Experienced Illinois Property Assessment Professional with a focus on providing forward thinking 

solutions in order to maximize tax dollar value while ensuring county compliance of all relevant 
state statutes.  

EXPERIENCE 
Winnebago County – Supervisor of Assessments (Chief County Assessment Officer) 

10/15/2018 – Present 

 Oversee administration of the county’s property tax assessment process pursuant to the Illinois 
Property Tax Code and relevant judicial decisions 

 Review & analyze township assessment rolls 

 Execute Sales Ratio Studies to obtain assessment metrics 

 Perform intra-county equalization to satisfy statutory assessment level requirements 

 Ensure accurate and timely reporting to the Illinois Department of Revenue 

 Annual publication of the assessment roll 

 Provide mailed assessment notices to property owners 

 Administration of Non-homestead and Homestead Exemptions 

 Instruct and assist township assessors in their job duties 

 Prepare and maintain property tax maps and parcel ownership information 

 Chair of the County Farmland Assessment Review Committee 

 Clerk of the Winnebago County Board of Review 

 Provide educational information to taxpayers as well as government entities through 
presentations and media outlets 
 

Winnebago County Supervisor of Assessments Office – Chief Deputy 

03/19/2018 – 10/14/2018 

 Oversee administrative staff 

 Assist in operating department within budget set by County Board 

 Assist the CCAO in balancing Tentative and Final Abstracts 

 Compile and publish annual assessment Changes and mail change notices 

 Resolve escalated taxpayer issues/problems 

 Facilitate cyclical Homestead Exemption maintenance 

 Compile and track payroll 

 Office supply ordering and procurement 

 Track and fulfill FOIA requests 

 Assist in the hiring and performance review of staff 

 Maintain and edit Supervisor of Assessments website 
 
 
 
 
 



Winnebago County – Supervisor of Assessments Office – Parcel Maintenance Specialist 

11/16/2015 – 03/16/2018 

 Maintain and edit the Winnebago County GIS parcel database map 

 Process Tax parcel revisions in accordance with tax cycle deadlines 

 Analyze various legal instruments to determine proper parcel boundaries for tax 
assessment purposes 

 Edit Farm Land Use map layer and import changes into DevNet 

 Communicate with inter-department offices as well as attorneys, title companies, and 
surveyors in order to resolve parcel issues 

EDUCATION 
Northern Illinois University 
Bachelor of Science: Environmental Studies with an emphasis in Energy 
May 2015 

 Cum Laude 

Illinois Central College 
Associate in Arts & Science: General Studies 
December 2010 

 Phi Theta Kappa National Honor Society 
 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
• County Assessment Officers Association (CAOA) – Area 1 Chairperson 

• Illinois Property Assessment Institute (IPAI) – State Conference Planning Committee 

• International Association of Assessing Officers (IAAO) member 

• Certified Illinois Assessing Officer (CIAO) 

• Rockford Leadership Alliance member 
• Certificate in Geographic Information Systems from NIU 

SKILLS 
 Proficient in the following software applications: 

o DevNet Assessment Administration  

o DevNet Mobile Home Administration 

o DevNet Tax Inquiry 
o MyTax 
o Microsoft SQL Server 
o GIS including ESRI’s ArcGIS suite of programs, Intergraph GeoMedia, & QGIS 
o Laredo Land Records Document Search Engine 
o Microsoft Office suite, including Word, Access & Outlook 

 Advanced skill set in Excel: VBA, Conditional Formula, Vlookup, etc. 
o NCSS Data Analysis 
o Crystal Reports 
o Adobe Acrobat Pro 
o DWG AutoCad viewer 

 

 





(35 ILCS 200/Art. 3 heading) 
Article 3. County Assessment Officials 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-5) 
    Sec. 3-5. Supervisor of assessments. In counties with less 
than 3,000,000 inhabitants and in which no county assessor has 
been elected under Section 3-45, there shall be a county 
supervisor of assessments, either appointed as provided in 
this Section, or elected. 
    In counties with less than 3,000,000 inhabitants and not 
having an elected county assessor or an elected supervisor of 
assessments, the office of supervisor of assessments shall be 
filled by appointment by the presiding officer of the county 
board with the advice and consent of the county board. 
    To be eligible for appointment or to be eligible to file 
nomination papers or participate as a candidate in any primary 
or general election for, or be elected to, the office of 
supervisor of assessments, or to enter upon the duties of the 
office, a person must possess one of the following 
qualifications as certified by the Department to the county 
clerk: 
        (1) A currently active Certified Illinois Assessing 
     Officer designation from the Illinois Property Assessment 

Institute. 
 

        (2) A currently active AAS, CAE, or MAS designation 
     from the International Association of Assessing Officers. 
 

        (3) A currently active MAI, SREA, SRPA, SRA, or RM 
     designation from the Appraisal Institute. 
 

    In addition, a person must have had at least 2 years' 
experience in the field of property sales, assessments, 
finance or appraisals and must have passed an examination 
conducted by the Department to determine his or her competence 
to hold the office. The examination may be conducted by the 
Department at a convenient location in the county or region. 
Notice of the time and place shall be given by publication in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the counties, at least 
one week prior to the exam. The Department shall certify to 
the county board a list of the names and scores of persons who 
pass the examination. The Department may provide by rule the 
maximum time that the name of a person who has passed the 
examination will be included on a list of persons eligible for 
appointment or election. The term of office shall be 4 years 
from the date of appointment and until a successor is 
appointed and qualified, or a successor is elected and 
qualified under Section 3-52. 
(Source: P.A. 101-150, eff. 7-26-19; 101-467, eff. 8-23-19; 
102-558, eff. 8-20-21.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-10) 
    Sec. 3-10. Dismissal of supervisor of assessments; 
Vacancies. The county board, by a vote of 2/3 of its members, 
may dismiss a supervisor of assessments before the expiration 
of his or her term for misfeasance, malfeasance or nonfeasance 
in the performance of the duties of the office. Whenever the 



county board dismisses a supervisor of assessments, it shall 
specify its reasons in writing. The dismissed supervisor may, 
within 21 days after receipt of the statement of reasons for 
dismissal, request a hearing before the county board. The 
county board shall conduct a hearing within 30 days of a 
timely request, and may reverse the dismissal by a vote of a 
majority of the members present. 
    Vacancies shall be filed by appointment for a full term. 
In the event of a vacancy, the county board may appoint an 
acting supervisor of assessments, but an acting supervisor may 
serve for no more than 60 days until a qualified person is 
appointed to fill the remainder of the term. 
(Source: P.A. 86-905; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-15) 
    Sec. 3-15. Service in more than one county. Any 2 or more 
counties may, with Department approval, appoint or elect the 
same person as county supervisor of assessments for each of 
such counties and may by agreement provide for the appropriate 
share of the salary and expenses of the official. In any case 
where a supervisor of assessments is shared, the aggregate 
population of the 2 or more counties shall be considered as 
the population when determining the compensation of the 
official under Section 3-40. If a county board desires to 
appoint as county supervisor of assessments of that county a 
person who is the appointed or elected supervisor of 
assessments of another county, the person shall not be 
required to take the examination given by the Department and 
shall not be required to accept the appointment. 
(Source: P.A. 86-905; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-20) 
    Sec. 3-20. Reimbursement when serving more than 1 
county. When 2 or more counties have, with Department 
approval, elected or appointed the same person as county 
supervisor of assessments, subject to appropriation, the 
Department shall pay out of the Personal Property Tax 
Replacement Fund to the counties a total of $5,000 per year to 
be applied toward the person's salary. The Department shall 
apportion the $5,000 among such counties in proportion to each 
county's share of the salary. 
    The amount payable under this Section is in addition to 
the 50% reimbursement provided for in Section 3-40, but in no 
event shall the total paid under this Section and the 
reimbursement under Section 3-40 exceed the compensation of 
the supervisor of assessments. 
(Source: P.A. 97-72, eff. 7-1-11.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-25) 
    Sec. 3-25. Reappointment or reelection. Reappointment or 
reelection of an incumbent supervisor of assessments may be 
made without examination. If the presiding officer of the 
county board does not intend to reappoint an incumbent, he or 



she shall notify the incumbent not more than 120 nor less than 
90 days before the expiration of his or her term. Upon request 
of the incumbent, the county board shall grant a public 
hearing as to why the incumbent will not be reappointed. 
(Source: P.A. 86-905; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-30) 
    Sec. 3-30. Supervisor of assessments as clerk of the board 
of review. Each supervisor of assessments shall serve as clerk 
of the county board of review and shall be present at all 
hearings held by the board. He or she shall not receive 
additional compensation for that service. 
(Source: P.A. 86-482; 86-1475; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-35) 
    Sec. 3-35. Outside employment. Except as provided below, 
any person appointed under Section 3-5 shall hold no other 
lucrative public office or public employment. In counties with 
less than 100,000 inhabitants, he or she may hold public 
employment if the duties are not incompatible with his or her 
duties as supervisor of assessments as assigned by the county 
board. The duties of a person administering a county zoning 
ordinance shall not be considered incompatible with the duties 
of a supervisor of assessments. 
(Source: P.A. 86-482; 86-1475; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-40) 
    Sec. 3-40. Compensation of supervisors of assessments. 
    (a) A supervisor of assessments shall receive annual 
compensation in an amount fixed by the county board subject to 
the following minimum amounts: 
        In counties with less than 14,000 inhabitants, not 
     less than $7,500; 
 

        In counties with 14,000 or more but less than 30,000 
     inhabitants, not less than $8,000; 
 

        In counties with 30,000 or more but less than 60,000 
     inhabitants, not less than $9,000; 
 

        In counties with 60,000 or more but less than 100,000 
     inhabitants, not less than $10,000; 
 

        In counties with 100,000 or more but less than 
     200,000 inhabitants, not less than $11,500; 
 

        In counties with 200,000 or more but less than 
     300,000 inhabitants, not less than $13,000; 
 

        In counties with 300,000 or more but less than 
     1,000,000 inhabitants, not less than $15,000. 
 

For purposes of this subsection, the number of inhabitants 
shall be determined by the latest Federal decennial or special 
census of the county. 
    (b) Elected supervisors of assessments who began a term of 
office before December 1, 1990 shall be compensated at the 
rate of their base salary. "Base salary" is the compensation 
paid for their position before July 1, 1989. 
    (c) Elected supervisors of assessments beginning a term of 



office on or after December 1, 1990 shall, beginning December 
1, 1993, receive their base salary plus at least 12% of base 
salary. 
    Any supervisor of assessments who has been presented a 
Certified Assessing Evaluator Certificate by the International 
Association of Assessing Officers shall receive an additional 
compensation of $500 per year to be paid out of funds 
appropriated to the Department from the Personal Property Tax 
Replacement Fund. 
    The salary set by the county board shall be paid in equal 
monthly installments out of the treasury of the county in 
which he or she is appointed or elected. If the Department has 
determined that the total assessed value of property in a 
county, as equalized by the supervisor of assessments under 
Section 9-210, is between 31 1/3% and 35 1/3% of the total 
fair cash value of property in the county, subject to 
appropriation, the Department shall reimburse the county 
monthly from the Personal Property Tax Replacement Fund 50% of 
the amount of salary the county paid to the officer for the 
preceding month. 
    The county board shall provide necessary office space for 
the officer and pay all necessary expenses of the office out 
of the county treasury. 
    Each supervisor of assessments may, with the advice and 
consent of the county board, appoint necessary deputies and 
clerks, their compensation to be fixed by the county board and 
paid by the county. 
(Source: P.A. 97-72, eff. 7-1-11.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-45) 
    Sec. 3-45. Election of county assessor; counties of less 
than 3,000,000. In counties having an elected board of review 
under Section 6-35, a county assessor shall be elected. To be 
eligible to file nomination papers or participate as a 
candidate in any primary or general election for, or be 
elected to, the office of county assessor, or to enter upon 
the duties of the office, a person must possess one of the 
following qualifications as certified by the individual to the 
county clerk: 
        (1) a Certified Illinois Assessing Officer 
     certificate from the Illinois Property Assessment Institute; or 
 

        (2) a Certified Assessment Evaluator designation from 
     the International Association of Assessing Officers. 
 

In addition, a person must have at least 2 years experience in 
the field of property sales, assessments, finance, or 
appraisals. 
    The county clerk must determine if candidates for assessor 
have qualified under this Code prior to certification of their 
nominating petitions. The election of the county assessor 
shall be at the same time and in the same manner as other 
county officials are elected under the general election law. 
The county assessor shall hold office for a 4 year term and 
until a successor is elected and qualified. Vacancies shall be 
filled in the same manner as are vacancies in other county 



elective offices. 
(Source: P.A. 92-235, eff. 8-2-01.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-50) 
    Sec. 3-50. Election of county assessors - Counties of 
3,000,000 or more. In all counties with 3,000,000 or more 
inhabitants, the office of county assessor, heretofore created 
and established, is hereby continued. 
    The county assessor shall be elected as provided in the 
general election law, at the general election in 1994 and 
every fourth year thereafter to hold office for a term of 4 
years from the first Monday of December, and until a successor 
is elected and qualified. Any vacancy in office shall be 
filled by appointment as provided in the general election law, 
until the next regular election of county officers when a 
successor shall be elected for the unexpired term or for the 
full term as the case may require. The county assessor shall 
take the oath and give the bond herein required of other 
assessors and of supervisors of assessments and shall receive 
such compensation payable from the county treasury in an 
amount set by the county board. The amount so set shall not be 
changed during the term for which he or she is elected or 
appointed. The county assessor shall also have a suitable 
office to be provided by the county board. 
(Source: P.A. 83-121; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-52) 
    Sec. 3-52. Election or appointment of county assessors or 
county supervisors of assessments. 
    (a) In counties with less than 3,000,000 inhabitants, the 
county may change the manner in which it selects its county 
assessor or county supervisor of assessments upon: 
        (1) adoption of an ordinance by the county board or 

     
county board of commissioners requiring the county 
assessor or county supervisor of assessments to be elected 
or appointed, as applicable; or 

 

        (2) the filing of a petition with the county board or 

     

the county board of commissioners, subject to the petition 
requirements of Section 28-3 of the Election Code and 
signed by 2% of the registered voters of the county, 
requiring the county assessor or county supervisor of 
assessments to be elected or appointed, as applicable. 

 

    (b) If an ordinance is adopted or a petition is filed 
meeting the requirements of subsection (a), then the county 
clerk shall certify the proposition to the appropriate 
election authorities, who shall submit a referendum, subject 
to the requirements of Section 16-7 of the Election Code, to 
be placed on the ballot at the next following general election 
in substantially the following form: 
        Shall the (county assessor or county supervisor of 

     
assessments, as applicable) be (elected rather than 
appointed or appointed rather than elected, as 
applicable)? 

 



    The votes shall be recorded as "Yes" or "No". The 
referendum is approved when a majority of the votes cast on 
the referendum approve the referendum. 
    (c) After the approval of a referendum under subsection 
(b): 
        (1) if voters approve the referendum to make the 

     

county assessor or county supervisor of assessments 
position elected rather than appointed, then the county 
assessor or county supervisor of assessments shall be 
elected at the general election next following the 
approval of the referendum and at the general election 
every 4 years thereafter; the elected county assessor or 
county supervisor of assessments shall serve until a 
successor is elected and qualified; the term of any 
appointed county assessor or county supervisor of 
assessments serving at the time of the approval of the 
referendum shall end when a successor is elected and 
qualified; and 

 

        (2) if the voters approve a referendum to make the 

     

county assessor or county supervisor of assessments 
position appointed rather than elected, then, at the 
conclusion of the term of the elected county assessor or 
county supervisor of assessments serving at the time of 
the approval of the referendum, the county assessor or 
county supervisor of assessments shall be appointed by the 
county board or county board of commissioners to a 4-year 
term and shall serve until a successor is appointed and 
qualified. 

 

(Source: P.A. 101-150, eff. 7-26-19.) 
 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-55) 
    Sec. 3-55. Staffing of county assessor's office - Counties 
of 3,000,000 or more. The county assessor in counties with 
3,000,000 or more inhabitants shall appoint one chief deputy 
assessor, one deputy assessor in charge of administrative 
service division and one deputy assessor in charge of real 
estate division. The county assessor may also employ other 
clerical help and deputies as may be necessary, each one of 
whom (except the chief deputy assessor, deputy assessor in 
charge of administrative service division, and deputy assessor 
in charge of real estate division) shall be appointed by the 
county assessor under the civil service law applicable in such 
counties. 
(Source: P.A. 83-121; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-60) 
    Sec. 3-60. Chief deputy - Counties of less than 3,000,000 
with elected assessor. The county assessor in counties with 
less than 3,000,000 inhabitants which elect a county assessor 
under Section 3-45 may employ a chief deputy and other 
clerical help as may be necessary. The chief deputy shall hold 
office at the will of the county assessor, and shall take and 
subscribe an oath of office that he or she will honestly and 
faithfully perform all duties of the office under the 



direction of the county assessor. The chief deputy shall have 
power to administer all oaths authorized by law to be 
administered by assessors. The compensation of the chief 
deputy shall be fixed by the county assessor, subject to the 
approval of the board of review. 
(Source: P.A. 86-1475; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-65) 
    Sec. 3-65. Deputy county assessors - Counties of less than 
3,000,000 with elected assessor. The county assessor in 
counties with less than 3,000,000 inhabitants which elect a 
county assessor under Section 3-45 may appoint as many 
suitable persons as in his or her judgment are necessary to 
act as deputies, who shall perform the duties assigned to them 
by the county assessor. They shall hold their office at the 
will of the county assessor, and shall receive compensation 
determined by the assessor to be paid out of the county 
treasury. Such deputy assessors shall, before entering upon 
their duties, take the oath or affirmation prescribed for the 
assessors. 
    In counties with less than 3,000,000 inhabitants which 
elect a county assessor under Section 3-45, in all townships 
not lying completely within the limits of one city, the 
township assessor shall be ex-officio the deputy assessor to 
make the assessments in the township where he or she is 
elected. If, in any township, the township assessor shall not 
be able, by himself or herself within the time allowed by law, 
to make the assessment of the township, any additional deputy 
assessors required to make the assessment shall be residents 
and legal voters of that township, and shall be nominated by 
the township's board of trustees and appointed by the county 
assessor only upon that nomination. Deputy assessors so 
appointed shall act under the supervision of the ex-officio 
deputy town assessors. 
(Source: P.A. 82-783; 88-455.) 

 
 

    (35 ILCS 200/3-70) 
    Sec. 3-70. Cessation of Township Assessor. If the office 
of Township Assessor in a coterminous township ceases as 
provided in Articles 27 and 28 of the Township Code, then the 
coterminous municipality shall assume the duties of the 
Township Assessor under this Code. 
(Source: P.A. 98-127, eff. 8-2-13; 99-474, eff. 8-27-15.) 

 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

 

Prepared By:    David J. Rickert 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     10-20-2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution to Fund American Legion Property Repairs with ARPA  
    Funds  

County Code:    N/A 

Board Meeting Date:   10-27-2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   Yes                        Appropriation Amount:    $176,450                                                        

If not, explain funding source:  American Rescue Plan Act  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300               Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:   This funding request will allow the Legion to continue   
    programming for veterans by coming in to compliance with City  
    of Rockford code to repair its parking lot and retaining walls.   

 

Recommendation:     N/A 

 
Contract/Agreement:    See attachment 
 
Legal Review:    N/A 
 
Baker Tilly Review:   Approved 
 
Follow-Up:      Funds are subject to compliance with ARPA requirements and sub  
    recipient agreement 
 
 
 



County Board: 10/27/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO FUND AMERICAN LEGION 
 PROPERTY REPAIRS WITH ARPA FUNDS 

 
 WHEREAS, The pandemic touched every area of society. Non-essential businesses were 

shut down, this included VFW's and other Clubs, who were disproportionately affected as they 
rely on in-person charity benefits to fund their existence. For these clubs, repair issues rapidly 
compounded into even more unmanageable issues with limited or no resources to address. This 
is true for Lt. Robert C.A. Carlson Post #1207, the American Legion in Rockford Illinois. As they 
scramble to manage the ordinary repairs and upkeep on a Covid-income, the City of Rockford has 
deemed their parking lot and retraining wall to be unacceptable for usage. The losses due to 
Covid-19 left the Legion unable to meet the need of this costly repair; and 

 
WHEREAS, in May 2021, Winnebago County Board received funds through the 

American Rescue Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the proposal for the aforementioned request and recommends 
awarding; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is authorized to disburse $176,450 to Lt. Robert 
C.A. Carlson Post #1207, the American Legion in Rockford Illinois for said activities. Subject 
to the attached terms and conditions in the sub recipient agreement. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               
 
 



 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

         FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 

ARP SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 
 

By and Between 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

and 
LT. ROBERT C.A. CARLSON POST #1207, THE 

AMERICAN LEGION IN ROCKFORD ILLINOIS 
 

FOR AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (“ARP”) FUNDS 
 
THIS ARP SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter “AGREEMENT”) is made 
by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a body politic and corporate 
(hereinafter “COUNTY”), and the Lt. Robert C.A. Carlson Post #1207, The American 
Legion in Rockford Illinois (hereinafter “RECIPIENT”). 

 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, President Joseph R. Biden signed into law the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (hereinafter “ARP”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 10, 2021, the United States Department of the Treasury (hereinafter 
“US TREASURY”) published guidance regarding the allowable usage of the Coronavirus State 
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (hereinafter “SLFRF”) to be disseminated to local 
governments in accordance with the ARP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the grand total allocation of SLFRF funds to the COUNTY, as published by the US 
TREASURY, is $54,886,298.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY received the first fifty percent (50%) of its SLFRF allocation 
($27,443,149.00) on May 15, 2021 and the second allocation on June 9, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the RECIPIENT, submitted a written request to the COUNTY on July 18th, 2022 
for four hundred thousand dollars ($400,000) in COVID-19 relief funds to provide economic 
assistance to a nonprofit organization impacted by COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY intends to allocate a portion of its SLFRF funds to Lt. Robert C.A. 
Carlson Post #1207, The American Legion in Rockford Illinois within Winnebago County, 
Illinois that has suffered negative economic impacts as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic in 
accordance with all federal, state, and local guidelines regarding the usage of SLFRF funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, under section 602(c)(3) of the ARP, the COUNTY may transfer funds to a 
private nonprofit entity for the purpose of meeting ARP’s goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, in an effort to provide additional guidance regarding the eligible uses of SLFRF 
funds, the US TREASURY published a document containing answers to Frequently Asked 
Questions regarding Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds as of July 19, 2021 
(hereinafter “FAQ”); and



 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 

WHEREAS, during their regular public meeting on 10-27-2022, the County Board of 
Winnebago County, Illinois (hereinafter “BOARD”) approved the aforementioned request 
from the RECIPIENT subject to all federal, state, and local guidelines regarding the usage of 
SLFRF funds, including any contractual guidelines set forth by the BOARD, as well as any 
audit requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY and RECIPIENT desire to enter into this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are incorporated herein 
by reference, and the terms and conditions set forth below, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM 
This Agreement shall commence when last executed by all parties and remain in effect no 
later than December 31, 2024, unless terminated by the COUNTY in writing. 

 
2. GRAND TOTAL SLFRF FUNDS TO BE DISSEMINATED TO RECIPIENT 

The grand total sub award of SLFRF funds to be disseminated by the COUNTY to 
the RECIPIENT as part of this Agreement shall not exceed one hundred seventy six 
thousand four hundred fifty dollars ($176,450). 

 
3. LIMITATIONS REGARDING THE USE OF SLFRF FUNDS 

The RECIPIENT shall ensure that all expenditures utilizing SLFRF funds received in 
accordance with this Agreement shall be limited to only those eligible services outlined 
in Section 602 (c) (3) of the US TREASURY ARP FAQ, which states that: 
 
Under section 602(c)(3) of the Social Security Act, a State, territory, or Tribal government may 
transfer funds to a “private nonprofit organization . . . , a Tribal organization . . . , a public 
benefit corporation involved in the transportation of passengers or cargo, or a special-purpose 
unit of State or local government.” Similarly, section 603(c)(3) authorizes a local government to 
transfer funds to the same entities (other than Tribal organizations). The interim final rule 
clarified that the lists of transferees in sections 602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) are not exclusive, and the 
final rule clarified that recipients may transfer funds to any entity to carry out, as a subrecipient, 
an eligible activity on behalf of the SLFRF recipient (transferor), as long as they comply with 
the SLFRF Award Terms and Conditions and other applicable requirements. A transferee 
receiving a transfer from a recipient under sections 602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) will be considered a 
subrecipient and will be expected to comply with all subrecipient reporting requirements. 
Additionally, a recipient can provide funds to an entity, including a nonprofit organization, for 
the purpose of directly benefitting the entity as a result of the entity experiencing a public health 
impact or negative economic impact of the pandemic. In this instance, these entities will be 
considered beneficiaries, not subrecipients, and will not be expected to comply with subrecipient 
reporting requirements. Beneficiary reporting requirements will apply.  

 
4. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ARP  

In order to ensure compliance with the existing ARP guidelines set forth by the US 
TREASURY – while also ensuring that all expenditures within the scope of this 
Agreement adhere to future guidelines that may be established by the US TREASURY 



 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

during the term of this Agreement – the RECIPIENT, when requesting reimbursement for 
eligible ARP expenditures, shall provide to the COUNTY a comprehensive and detailed 
list of all such expenditures on an itemized invoice, and shall also provide any backup 
documentation to support such expenditures. Said invoice must include a statement, 
signed by the RECIPIENT, indicating that all expenditures therein comport with the 
guidelines of the ARP as set forth by the US TREASURY. Reimbursement requests shall 
be submitted to the COUNTY no more than once per month. No reimbursement requests 
may be submitted to the COUNTY after December 31, 2024. 

 
5. TIMELINE REGARDING THE DISSEMINATION OF FUNDS TO RECIPIENT 

Upon receipt of the RECIPIENT’s complete reimbursement request, the COUNTY shall 
disseminate funds for all eligible ARP expenditures therein within twenty (20) days of 
receipt of said reimbursement request. The dissemination of SLFRF funds shall only 
occur after the COUNTY reviews the RECIPIENT’s reimbursement request to ensure 
that all expenditures detailed therein qualify for reimbursement in accordance with all 
published federal, state, and local guidance regarding the use of SLFRF funds as 
specified in the ARP. All payments from the COUNTY to the RECIPIENT are 
contingent on the availability of SLFRF funds to the COUNTY, and further subject to all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the governance of SLFRF funds within 
the ARP. 

 
6. EVOLUTION OF ARP GUIDANCE FROM THE US TREASURY 

The COUNTY may request additional information from the RECIPIENT, as needed, to 
meet any additional guidelines regarding the use of SLFRF funds that may be established 
by the US TREASURY during the scope of this Agreement. 

 
7. TERMINATION 

The COUNTY may terminate this Agreement, for convenience or otherwise and for no 
consideration or damages, upon prior written notice to the RECIPIENT. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Each party under the Agreement shall be for all purposes an independent Contractor. 
Nothing contained herein will be deemed to create an association, a partnership, a joint 
venture, or a relationship of principal and agent, or employer and employee between the 
parties. The RECIPIENT shall not be, or be deemed to be, or act or purport to act, as an 
employee, agent, or representative of the COUNTY for any purpose. 

 
9. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

The RECIPIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the COUNTY, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and representatives harmless from and against any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or expenses, including without limitation personal 
injury, bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or damage to or destruction of property, 
which are alleged or proven to be caused in whole or in part by an act or omission of the 
RECIPIENT, its officers, directors, employees, and/or agents relating to the 
RECIPIENT’s performance or failure to perform under this Agreement. This section shall 



 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 

survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GUIDELINES 
The RECIPIENT shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and all requirements 
and published guidance set forth regarding the usage of any and all monies appropriated 
under the ARP. 

 
11. MAINTENANCE AND AUDIT OF RECORDS 

The RECIPIENT shall maintain records, books, documents, and other materials relevant 
to its performance under this Agreement. These records shall be subject to inspection, 
review, and audit by the COUNTY or its designees, and the US TREASURY for five (5) 
years following termination of this Agreement. If it is determined during the course of 
the audit that the RECIPIENT was reimbursed for unallowable costs under this 
Agreement or any, the RECIPIENT agrees to promptly reimburse the COUNTY for such 
payments upon request. 

 
12. NOTICES 

Any notices desired or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be 
deemed received three (3) days after deposit with the US Postal Service (postage fully 
prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested), and addressed to the party to which it is 
intended at its last known address, or to such person or address as either party shall 
designate to the other from time to time in writing forwarded in like manner: 
 

RECIPIENT 
Lt. Robert C.A. Carlson Post #1207, The American 

Legion in Rockford Illinois 
1011 South Alpine Road 

Rockford, IL 61108 
 

COUNTY 
Winnebago County Administration Building 

Attn: Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 
404 Elm Street 

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

 
13. IMPROPER INFLUENCE 

Each party warrants that it did not and will not employ, retain, or contract with any 
person or entity on a contingent compensation basis for the purpose of seeking, obtaining, 
maintaining, or extending this Agreement. Each party agrees, warrants, and represents 
that no gratuity whatsoever has been or will be offered or conferred with a view towards 
obtaining, maintaining, or extending this Agreement. 

 
 
 



 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
The elected and appointed officials and employees of the parties shall not have any 
personal interest, direct or indirect, which gives rise to a conflict of interest. 
 

15. TIME 
Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

 
16. SURVIVAL 

The provisions of this Agreement that by their sense and purpose should survive 
expiration or termination of the Agreement shall so survive. Those provisions include 
without limitation Indemnification and Maintenance and Audit of Records. 

 
17. AMENDMENT 

No amendment or modification to the Agreement shall be effective without prior written 
consent of the authorized representatives of the parties. 

 
18. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE 

The Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of Illinois, both 
as to interpretation and performance, without regard to conflicts of law or choice of law 
provisions. Any action arising out of or in conjunction with the Agreement may be 
instituted and maintained only in the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit of 
Winnebago County, Illinois. 
 

19. NON-WAIVER 
No failure on the part of the COUNTY to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the 
COUNTY of any right hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the 
exercise of any other right. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and not 
exclusive of any remedy available to the COUNTY at law or in equity. 

 
20. BINDING EFFECT 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 
their respective successors. 

 
21. ASSIGNMENT 

The RECIPIENT shall not assign or transfer any of its interests in or obligations under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the COUNTY and the 
RECIPIENT for the use of funds received under this Agreement and it supersedes all 
prior or contemporaneous communications and proposals, whether electronic, oral, or 
written between the parties with respect to this Agreement. 

 



 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

23. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
Nothing herein shall or be deemed to create or confer any right, action, or benefit in, to, 
or on the part of any person or entity that is not a party to this Agreement. This provision 
shall not limit any obligation which either party has to the US TREASURY in 
connection with the use of ARP funds, including the obligations to provide access to 
records and cooperate with audits as provided in this Agreement. 

 
24. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

Recipients of Federal financial assistance from the US TREASURY are required to meet 
legal requirements relating to nondiscrimination and nondiscriminatory use of Federal 
funds. Those requirements include ensuring that entities receiving Federal financial 
assistance from the US TREASURY do not deny benefits or services, or otherwise 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin (including limited English 
proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), in 
accordance with the following authorities: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title 
VI) Public Law 88-352, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-1 et seq., and the Department's implementing 
regulations, 31 CFR part 22; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), 
Public Law 93-112, as amended by Public Law 93-516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the Department's 
implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 28; Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Public Law 
94-135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and the Department implementing regulations at 31 CFR 
part 23. 

 
25. SEVERABILITY 

In the event that one or more provisions of this Agreement shall be determined to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction or agency having jurisdiction thereof, the 
remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the invalid 
provisions shall be deemed deleted. 

 
26. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in on or more counterparts, any of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

 
27. AUTHORIZATION 

Each party signing below warrants to the other party, that they have the full power and 
authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom they sign. 

 
 
 

*** 



 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed and shall become effective as of the last 
date signed below: 
 
 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS      
a body politic and corporate 
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Joseph V. Chiarelli       
Chairman of the County Board of the   
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
RECIPIENT  
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
Lt. Robert C.A. Carlson Post #1207, The American Legion in Rockford Illinois 
1011 South Alpine Road 
Rockford, IL 61108 
 
 
 
 
 

 















 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:    David J. Rickert 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     10-20-2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution to Fund Children’s Advocacy Center with ARPA Funds  

County Code:    N/A 

Board Meeting Date:   10-27-2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   Yes                        Appropriation Amount:    $72,000                                                        

If not, explain funding source:  American Rescue Plan Act  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300               Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:   The Children's Advocacy Center of Winnebago County provides a 
comprehensive multi-disciplinary response to child sexual abuse and serious physical abuse 
allegations in a neutral, child-focused setting.  The overall purpose is to coordinate and track 
the investigations, medical treatment, counseling referrals, prosecution and training in order to 
protect the best interests of the child victims and their families.   

If awarded, the funding will supplement our current budget; specifically covering our rent.  
Current grant funding only partially covers salaries and benefits.  So, we rely on our unrestricted 
funding sources (i.e. fines and fees, property tax referendum, and fund raising) to make up 
other deficits.   

 

Recommendation:     Administration Supports 
 
Contract/Agreement:    See attachment 
 
Legal Review:    N/A 
 
Baker Tilly Review:   Approved 
 
Follow-Up:      Funds are subject to compliance with ARPA requirements  



County Board: 10/27/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO FUND CHILDREN’S ADVOCACY CENTER WITH ARPA FUNDS 
 

 WHEREAS, The Children's Advocacy Center of Winnebago County provides a 
comprehensive multi-disciplinary response to child sexual abuse and serious physical abuse 
allegations in a neutral, child-focused setting.  The overall purpose is to coordinate and track 
the investigations, medical treatment, counseling referrals, prosecution and training in order 
to protect the best interests of the child victims and their families.  If awarded, the funding 
will supplement our current budget; specifically covering our rent.  Current grant funding 
only partially covers salaries and benefits.  So, we rely on our unrestricted funding sources 
(i.e. fines and fees, property tax referendum, and fund raising) to make up other deficits.  ; 
and; 

 
WHEREAS, in May 2021, Winnebago County Board received funds through the 

American Rescue Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the proposal for the aforementioned request and recommends 
awarding; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is authorized to disburse $72,000 to The Children's 
Advocacy Center of Winnebago County for said activities. Subject to the attached terms 
and conditions in the sub recipient agreement. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               
 



 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

         FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



Coronavirus Funding Relief Funding Checklist 

American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act Checklist
Last updated: 7/26/2021
Ver. 1.02

Requesting Department:

Individual Submitting Request: Kathy Pomahac
Date of Request: 5/26/2022

Children's Advocacy 
Center

Overarching Principles
Describe the need that was caused by COVID-19

Describe how this cost will meet the need noted above

The Children's Advocacy Center of Winnebago County provides a comprehensive multi-disciplinary response to 
child sexual abuse and serious physical abuse allegations in a neutral, child-focused setting.  The overall purpose 
is to coordinate and track the investigations, medical treatment, counseling referrals, prosecution and training in 
order to protect the best interests of the child victims and their families.  

The Children's Advocacy Center of Winnebago County serves well over 650 children and their non-offending 
caretakers each year.  Services are provided free of charge to all families that are referred.  Services include 
Forensic Interviews, Crisis Intervention Counseling, and Court Advocacy.  It is important to note, that child abuse 
didn't stop during the pandemic.  In fact, numbers of cases increased same with the severity of the abuse 
becoming even more heinous.  

While we are not considered first responders, our partners who rely on our services are first responders i.e. law 
enforcment.  Therefore, the demands on our services require us to available at any time an allegation is made.  
Because there is not way to provide our hands on services from home, we have remained open and accesible 
throughout the pandemic.

Our grants mandate that our services be provided without interruption.  So, we had no choice but to get creative 
during the pandemic.  Masks and constant sanitation were only a part of the solution.  We were forced to restrict 
the number of people who could be in the Center at any given time, staff were rotated in and out on an as needed 
basis, team meetings, which are a critcial component of our process, were made virtual, etc.       

If awarded, the funding will supplement our current budget; specifically covering our rent.  Current grant funding 
only partially covers salaries and benefits.  So, we rely on our unrestricted funding sources (i.e. fines and fees, 
property tax referendum, and fund raising) to make up other deficits.  

However, we have experienced a very impactful drop in funding in our unrestricted funding sources.  Fines and 
fees have dropped from over $70,000 to less than $20,000.  Our tax referendum has dropped from over $180,000 
to $150,000.  And with COVID, we have had minimal success at securing funds through fund raising, community 
awareness events, and other activities.

As it stands currently, we are running at a deficit within the county that we are attempting to "make up."  In fact the 
county predicts that we will be at a $136,000 deficit by the end of the next fiscal year.  Therefore, this funding 
could significantly reduce our deficit.  

Page 1 of 2



Coronavirus Funding Relief Funding Checklist 

Does the cost fall within one of the eligible categories? Yes / No

COVID-19 response and prevention No
Public health and safety staff No
Hiring state and local government staff No
Assistance to unemployed workers No
Contributions to state unemployment insurance trust funds No
Small businesses No
Nonprofits No
Assistance to households No
Aid to impacted industries No
Expenses to improve efficacy of public health or economic relief programs No
Survivor's benefits No
Disproportionately impacted populations and communities Yes

Is the employer eligible? No
Is the worker considered to be essential? No
Pay rates and maximums stay within the allowable amounts: No
 - $13/hour in additional wages above normal rate No
 - $25,000 per eligible worker No
 - Total pay does not exceed 150 percent of average annual wage within relevant state No

Is the cost considered to be related to provision of government services? No
Cost is not related to debt service and related issuance costs No
Cost is not related to settlements or judgments No
Funds are not being used to replenish financial reserve funds No

Water system infrastructure No
Sewer system infrastructure No
Broadband infrastructure No

n/a

Assuming there is a revenue loss determined via the allowed calculation:

Public Health and Economic Impacts
Does the cost relate to one of the following subcategories?

Premium Pay
Are the following requirements met?

Revenue Loss

Eligibility Dating
When is it anticipated that the costs will be incurred?
2022-2026

Investments in Infrastructure
Is the cost related to one of the following subcategories:

Supporting Documentation
Please provide a listing of supporting documents being submitted with this request:

Page 2 of 2



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

Prepared By:    David J. Rickert 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     10-20-2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution to Fund Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity  

    Housing Plan with ARPA Funds  

County Code:    N/A 

Board Meeting Date:   10-27-2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   Yes                        Appropriation Amount:    $250,000                                                    

If not, explain funding source:  American Rescue Plan Act  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300               Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:   For over three decades, Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity 
(RAHFH) responded to a need for safe, affordable housing. While they previously addressed this 
need by providing new and rehabbed housing stock for first time home buyers going through 
their homeownership program, the pandemic brought to light the need to preserve existing 
housing stock in order to maintain safety and affordability for existing homeowners. With the 
proper resources, RAHFH can execute the critical home repairs needed to keep people in their 
own, owner-occupied homes longer, keep their houses safe and accessible, and keep the cost 
of housing affordable for existing low-income homeowners in our community.  

 

Recommendation:     N/A 

 
Contract/Agreement:    See attachment 
 
Legal Review:    N/A 
 
Baker Tilly Review:   Approved 
 
Follow-Up:      Funds are subject to compliance with ARPA requirements and sub  
    recipient agreement 
 



County Board: 10/27/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO FUND ROCKFORD AREA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY  
HOUSING PLAN WITH ARPA FUNDS 

 
 WHEREAS, for over three decades, Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity (RAHFH) 

responded to a need for safe, affordable housing. While they previously addressed this need by 
providing new and rehabbed housing stock for first time home buyers going through their 
homeownership program, the pandemic brought to light the need to preserve existing housing 
stock in order to maintain safety and affordability for existing homeowners. With the proper 
resources, RAHFH can execute the critical home repairs needed to keep people in their own, 
owner-occupied homes longer, keep their houses safe and accessible, and keep the cost of 
housing affordable for existing low-income homeowners in our community.; and 

 
WHEREAS, in May 2021, Winnebago County Board received funds through the 

American Rescue Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, has reviewed the proposal for the aforementioned request and recommends 
awarding; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is authorized to disburse $250,000 to Habitat for 
Humanity for said activities. Subject to the attached terms and conditions in the sub 
recipient agreement. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               
 
 



 

 
 Respectfully Submitted, 

         FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 

ARP SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 
 

By and Between 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

and 
ROCKFORD AREA HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 

 
FOR AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (“ARP”) FUNDS 

 
THIS ARP SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter “AGREEMENT”) is made 
by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a body politic and corporate 
(hereinafter “COUNTY”), and the Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity (hereinafter 
“RECIPIENT”). 

 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, President Joseph R. Biden signed into law the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (hereinafter “ARP”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 10, 2021, the United States Department of the Treasury (hereinafter 
“US TREASURY”) published guidance regarding the allowable usage of the Coronavirus State 
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (hereinafter “SLFRF”) to be disseminated to local 
governments in accordance with the ARP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the grand total allocation of SLFRF funds to the COUNTY, as published by the US 
TREASURY, is $54,886,298.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY received the first fifty percent (50%) of its SLFRF allocation 
($27,443,149.00) on May 15, 2021 and the second allocation on June 9, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the RECIPIENT, submitted a written request to the COUNTY on August 31st , 
2022 for two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) in COVID-19 relief funds to 
provide economic assistance to a nonprofit organization impacted by COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY intends to allocate a portion of its SLFRF funds to Rockford Area 
Habitat for Humanity within Winnebago County, Illinois that has suffered negative economic 
impacts as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic in accordance with all federal, state, and local 
guidelines regarding the usage of SLFRF funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, under section 602(c)(3) of the ARP, the COUNTY may transfer funds to a 
private nonprofit entity for the purpose of meeting ARP’s goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, in an effort to provide additional guidance regarding the eligible uses of SLFRF 
funds, the US TREASURY published a document containing answers to Frequently Asked 
Questions regarding Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds as of July 19, 2021 
(hereinafter “FAQ”); and



 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 

WHEREAS, during their regular public meeting on 10-27-2022, the County Board of 
Winnebago County, Illinois (hereinafter “BOARD”) approved the aforementioned request 
from the RECIPIENT subject to all federal, state, and local guidelines regarding the usage of 
SLFRF funds, including any contractual guidelines set forth by the BOARD, as well as any 
audit requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY and RECIPIENT desire to enter into this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are incorporated herein 
by reference, and the terms and conditions set forth below, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM 
This Agreement shall commence when last executed by all parties and remain in effect no 
later than December 31, 2024, unless terminated by the COUNTY in writing. 

 
2. GRAND TOTAL SLFRF FUNDS TO BE DISSEMINATED TO RECIPIENT 

The grand total sub award of SLFRF funds to be disseminated by the COUNTY to 
the RECIPIENT as part of this Agreement shall not exceed two hundred and fifty 
thousand dollars ($250,000). 

 
3. LIMITATIONS REGARDING THE USE OF SLFRF FUNDS 

The RECIPIENT shall ensure that all expenditures utilizing SLFRF funds received in 
accordance with this Agreement shall be limited to only those eligible services outlined 
in Section 602 (c) (3) of the US TREASURY ARP FAQ, which states that: 
 
Under section 602(c)(3) of the Social Security Act, a State, territory, or Tribal government may 
transfer funds to a “private nonprofit organization . . . , a Tribal organization . . . , a public 
benefit corporation involved in the transportation of passengers or cargo, or a special-purpose 
unit of State or local government.” Similarly, section 603(c)(3) authorizes a local government to 
transfer funds to the same entities (other than Tribal organizations). The interim final rule 
clarified that the lists of transferees in sections 602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) are not exclusive, and the 
final rule clarified that recipients may transfer funds to any entity to carry out, as a subrecipient, 
an eligible activity on behalf of the SLFRF recipient (transferor), as long as they comply with 
the SLFRF Award Terms and Conditions and other applicable requirements. A transferee 
receiving a transfer from a recipient under sections 602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) will be considered a 
subrecipient and will be expected to comply with all subrecipient reporting requirements. 
Additionally, a recipient can provide funds to an entity, including a nonprofit organization, for 
the purpose of directly benefitting the entity as a result of the entity experiencing a public health 
impact or negative economic impact of the pandemic. In this instance, these entities will be 
considered beneficiaries, not subrecipients, and will not be expected to comply with subrecipient 
reporting requirements. Beneficiary reporting requirements will apply.  

 
4. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ARP  

In order to ensure compliance with the existing ARP guidelines set forth by the US 
TREASURY – while also ensuring that all expenditures within the scope of this 
Agreement adhere to future guidelines that may be established by the US TREASURY 



 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

during the term of this Agreement – the RECIPIENT, when requesting reimbursement for 
eligible ARP expenditures, shall provide to the COUNTY a comprehensive and detailed 
list of all such expenditures on an itemized invoice, and shall also provide any backup 
documentation to support such expenditures. Said invoice must include a statement, 
signed by the RECIPIENT, indicating that all expenditures therein comport with the 
guidelines of the ARP as set forth by the US TREASURY. Reimbursement requests shall 
be submitted to the COUNTY no more than once per month. No reimbursement requests 
may be submitted to the COUNTY after December 31, 2024. 

 
5. TIMELINE REGARDING THE DISSEMINATION OF FUNDS TO RECIPIENT 

Upon receipt of the RECIPIENT’s complete reimbursement request, the COUNTY shall 
disseminate funds for all eligible ARP expenditures therein within twenty (20) days of 
receipt of said reimbursement request. The dissemination of SLFRF funds shall only 
occur after the COUNTY reviews the RECIPIENT’s reimbursement request to ensure 
that all expenditures detailed therein qualify for reimbursement in accordance with all 
published federal, state, and local guidance regarding the use of SLFRF funds as 
specified in the ARP. All payments from the COUNTY to the RECIPIENT are 
contingent on the availability of SLFRF funds to the COUNTY, and further subject to all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the governance of SLFRF funds within 
the ARP. 

 
6. EVOLUTION OF ARP GUIDANCE FROM THE US TREASURY 

The COUNTY may request additional information from the RECIPIENT, as needed, to 
meet any additional guidelines regarding the use of SLFRF funds that may be established 
by the US TREASURY during the scope of this Agreement. 

 
7. TERMINATION 

The COUNTY may terminate this Agreement, for convenience or otherwise and for no 
consideration or damages, upon prior written notice to the RECIPIENT. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Each party under the Agreement shall be for all purposes an independent Contractor. 
Nothing contained herein will be deemed to create an association, a partnership, a joint 
venture, or a relationship of principal and agent, or employer and employee between the 
parties. The RECIPIENT shall not be, or be deemed to be, or act or purport to act, as an 
employee, agent, or representative of the COUNTY for any purpose. 

 
9. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

The RECIPIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the COUNTY, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and representatives harmless from and against any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or expenses, including without limitation personal 
injury, bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or damage to or destruction of property, 
which are alleged or proven to be caused in whole or in part by an act or omission of the 
RECIPIENT, its officers, directors, employees, and/or agents relating to the 
RECIPIENT’s performance or failure to perform under this Agreement. This section shall 



 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 

survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GUIDELINES 
The RECIPIENT shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and all requirements 
and published guidance set forth regarding the usage of any and all monies appropriated 
under the ARP. 

 
11. MAINTENANCE AND AUDIT OF RECORDS 

The RECIPIENT shall maintain records, books, documents, and other materials relevant 
to its performance under this Agreement. These records shall be subject to inspection, 
review, and audit by the COUNTY or its designees, and the US TREASURY for five (5) 
years following termination of this Agreement. If it is determined during the course of 
the audit that the RECIPIENT was reimbursed for unallowable costs under this 
Agreement or any, the RECIPIENT agrees to promptly reimburse the COUNTY for such 
payments upon request. 

 
12. NOTICES 

Any notices desired or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be 
deemed received three (3) days after deposit with the US Postal Service (postage fully 
prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested), and addressed to the party to which it is 
intended at its last known address, or to such person or address as either party shall 
designate to the other from time to time in writing forwarded in like manner: 
 

RECIPIENT 
Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity  

5183 Harlem Rd.  
Loves Park, Il 61111  

 
COUNTY 

Winnebago County Administration Building 
Attn: Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 

404 Elm Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 

 
13. IMPROPER INFLUENCE 

Each party warrants that it did not and will not employ, retain, or contract with any 
person or entity on a contingent compensation basis for the purpose of seeking, obtaining, 
maintaining, or extending this Agreement. Each party agrees, warrants, and represents 
that no gratuity whatsoever has been or will be offered or conferred with a view towards 
obtaining, maintaining, or extending this Agreement. 

 
 
 

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 



 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

The elected and appointed officials and employees of the parties shall not have any 
personal interest, direct or indirect, which gives rise to a conflict of interest. 
 

15. TIME 
Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

 
16. SURVIVAL 

The provisions of this Agreement that by their sense and purpose should survive 
expiration or termination of the Agreement shall so survive. Those provisions include 
without limitation Indemnification and Maintenance and Audit of Records. 

 
17. AMENDMENT 

No amendment or modification to the Agreement shall be effective without prior written 
consent of the authorized representatives of the parties. 

 
18. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE 

The Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of Illinois, both 
as to interpretation and performance, without regard to conflicts of law or choice of law 
provisions. Any action arising out of or in conjunction with the Agreement may be 
instituted and maintained only in the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit of 
Winnebago County, Illinois. 
 

19. NON-WAIVER 
No failure on the part of the COUNTY to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the 
COUNTY of any right hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the 
exercise of any other right. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and not 
exclusive of any remedy available to the COUNTY at law or in equity. 

 
20. BINDING EFFECT 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 
their respective successors. 

 
21. ASSIGNMENT 

The RECIPIENT shall not assign or transfer any of its interests in or obligations under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the COUNTY and the 
RECIPIENT for the use of funds received under this Agreement and it supersedes all 
prior or contemporaneous communications and proposals, whether electronic, oral, or 
written between the parties with respect to this Agreement. 

 
23. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 



 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

Nothing herein shall or be deemed to create or confer any right, action, or benefit in, to, 
or on the part of any person or entity that is not a party to this Agreement. This provision 
shall not limit any obligation which either party has to the US TREASURY in 
connection with the use of ARP funds, including the obligations to provide access to 
records and cooperate with audits as provided in this Agreement. 

 
24. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

Recipients of Federal financial assistance from the US TREASURY are required to meet 
legal requirements relating to nondiscrimination and nondiscriminatory use of Federal 
funds. Those requirements include ensuring that entities receiving Federal financial 
assistance from the US TREASURY do not deny benefits or services, or otherwise 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin (including limited English 
proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), in 
accordance with the following authorities: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title 
VI) Public Law 88-352, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-1 et seq., and the Department's implementing 
regulations, 31 CFR part 22; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), 
Public Law 93-112, as amended by Public Law 93-516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the Department's 
implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 28; Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Public Law 
94-135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and the Department implementing regulations at 31 CFR 
part 23. 

 
25. SEVERABILITY 

In the event that one or more provisions of this Agreement shall be determined to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction or agency having jurisdiction thereof, the 
remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the invalid 
provisions shall be deemed deleted. 

 
26. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in on or more counterparts, any of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

 
27. AUTHORIZATION 

Each party signing below warrants to the other party, that they have the full power and 
authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom they sign. 

 
 
 

*** 



 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed and shall become effective as of the last 
date signed below: 
 
 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS      
a body politic and corporate 
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Joseph V. Chiarelli       
Chairman of the County Board of the   
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
RECIPIENT  
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity  
5183 Harlem Rd.  
Loves Park, Il 61111  
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Attachment 

 
 



 

  

2022 

 

A Proposal to Winnebago County 



1. Identification of Applicant  

Name of Organization Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity  
Contact Person for Organization  Keri Asevedo, Executive Director 
Address  5183 Harlem Rd. Loves Park, Il 61111 
Telephone  815-636-4573 
E-Mail Address  KeriAsevedo@RockfordHabitat.org 
Website  www.rockfordhabitat.org 

 

2. Executive Summary 

Our mission at Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity (RAHFH) is to help households achieve 
strength, stability, and independence in their housing. Over the last three decades, we have 
executed this mission primarily by creating more equitably accessible homeownership 
opportunity for low-income households in Winnebago County through the construction and 
sale of affordable homes.  

RAHFH was incorporated in 1988 by a small group of individuals who believed that working 
class families in our community needed a chance at the American dream of owning a home. 
Since that time, we have built 138 homes in Winnebago County and originated 160 affordable, 
0%-interest mortgages, providing owner-occupied housing for 170 adults and 400+ children. 
We have invested millions of dollars and thousands of hours of work into our community to 
ensure that low-income families have an equitable chance at safe housing and bright futures.  

We see our traditional homeownership program as falling along a continuum of housing needs 
within our community. This continuum ranges from services for those experiencing 
homelessness to affordable rental housing to home preservation and modifications for existing 
homeowners to “age in place.”  

Funding to add a significant critical home repair program to RAHFH’s work would ameliorate 
our mission of helping households achieve independence in their housing by allowing us to 
strengthen and stabilize a broader segment of households along this continuum. With the 
proper resources, RAHFH can execute the critical home repairs needed to keep people in their 
own, owner-occupied homes longer, keep their houses safe and accessible, and keep the cost 
of housing affordable for existing low-income homeowners in our community. 



 

3. The Need 

For over three decades, Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity (RAHFH) has responded to a need 
in our community for safe, affordable housing. While we have previously addressed this need 
by providing new and rehabbed housing stock for first time home buyers going through 
RAHFH's homeownership program, we are aware that there is a growing and tremendous need 
to preserve existing housing stock in order to maintain safety and affordability for existing 
homeowners.  

Daily, we take phone calls at our office from existing homeowners who are struggling to meet 
the critical repair needs on their homes because the repairs require resources beyond their 
financial means, and they are not covered by insurance, often because of the age of the home. 
While the County and other organizations are able to address some of these projects, 
restrictions from funding sources paired with overwhelming demand can leave many 
households in the cracks.  

When homeowners cannot find resources to help address the repair needs on their homes, the 
issues begin to rapidly compound into even more unmanageable issues with the home. Leaking 
roofs lead to mold issues; collapsing porches lead to accessibility and liability issues; broken 
windows lead to rot. As these issues become increasingly complex, the home rapidly loses its 
value and becomes harder to save, which is a loss not only to the homeowner but to the 
broader neighborhood and community as well. According to the American Center for Progress, 
deteriorating and abandoned homes draw down surrounding property values and have direct 
costs to the municipality associated with inspections, fire calls, and loss of property taxes.  



We believe that we can help homeowners address these critical repair needs before they get 
out of hand through a model very similar to our homeownership program, based on income 
eligibility and need. At the same time as this program would provide a critical service to 
Winnebago County residents, it will also help preserve the integrity, livability, and value of the 
housing stock itself. It is also a strategy to preserve affordable housing units in the county if the 
owner is paying less than 30% of their monthly income on the mortgage. In strong housing 
markets, home preservation is a keyway to retain affordable housing in areas where it would be 
hard to create new affordable units. 

 

 
4. Our Proposal to Address the Need 

From 2016 to 2019, RAHFH was able to execute a small-scale home repair program through a 
partnership with Thrivent, which allowed us to complete over a dozen low-cost (up to $2,500), 
exterior-only repairs on homes. Through this exterior repair program, we began to recognize 
not only how widespread the need for repair assistance was, but also that there was a need for 
more significant assistance than we were able to provide with the $2,500 grants.  

In 2021, we built on our experience with the smaller home repairs and took on a small number 
of larger-scale, critical home repairs as a pilot program. With $40,000 from the Community 
Foundation of Northern Illinois, we were able to serve seven low-income seniors in Rockford 
through projects such as porch reconstruction, window and door replacement, roof repair, and 
ramp construction.  

LEFT: A ramp addition by 
RAHFH in 2021 to make an 
existing home accessible for 
the owner, who is a low-
income senior 



One participant in the program said: “I feel so different with the improvements to my older 
home. I’m not embarrassed anymore. My house is quality now. The repairs changed my life.”  
 
Financial support from the County will allow Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity to launch a 
more significant critical home repair program for existing, low-income homeowners in 
Winnebago County. This program will allow us to expand the scope of our service to help low-
income households who already own homes — many of whom are seniors who have owned 
their homes for many years— stay in their homes and maintain the value of their homes. It 
would allow them to age in place while contributing to the stabilization of the surrounding 
neighborhood.  

With a $250,000 gift from Winnebago County to match gifts of the same amount from 
Rockford Housing Development Corporation (RHDC) and City of Rockford, RAHFH would 
complete critical home repair projects averaging $10,000 per project on existing homes 
owned by low-income homeowners.  

These efforts would directly address the demonstrated need in our community for low-income, 
owner-occupied home repair assistance, and these efforts would create a better continuum of 
housing services in our community by allowing RAHFH to serve households that other entities 
cannot.  

 

 

 

5. Project plan 

Spring of 2022: RAHFH hired a designated, fulltime project manager to coordinate and execute 
the program.  

Before (left) and After (right) of a small exterior repair to make steps safe. 2021.  



Spring 2022: RAHFH marketed the Critical Home Repair program through a variety of avenues, 
including through our community partners and through direct mailings to targeted areas.   

Rolling Basis: Our Homeowner Services staff review applications following similar criteria to our 
home-buying program. First, we vet the applications to eliminate those that do not meet our 
income requirements (eligible applicants will earn below 80% of the Area Median Income). 
Second, we will determine that there is a need at the home that we can address, and 
applications will be ranked and selected by highest need as determined by a home visit and 
assessment. All applicants will be notified of the status of their application (approved, denied, 
or incomplete) within 30 days.  The Volunteer Coordinator will begin to connect volunteer 
groups with repair projects to supplement the work of the Project Manager as needed. Repairs 
will be completed by Construction staff along with volunteers when appropriate. 

To date, RAHFH has received 106 applications from residents of Winnebago County, and over 
90 home assessments have been completed.  Applicants are from all areas of the county, 
including unincorporated Rockford, Loves Park, Machesney Park, Cherry Valley, Poplar Grove, 
and South Beloit.  To date, RAHFH has received 27 applications from County residents and 78 
within City of Rockford limits.   

  

 
 
 
 
 

Before (left) and After (right) of a minor roof repair for a low-income senior. 2021.  



6. Budget Narrative 

Summary of Budgeted Proposal:  Rockford Area Habitat for Humanity is seeking funding of 
$250,000 from Winnebago County to expand our Critical Home Repair program for low-income 
homeowners who do not live within City of Rockford limits.   
 
RAHFH has received funding from Rockford Housing Development Corporation (RHDC) in the 
amount of $250,000, and a match from the City of Rockford to invest in critical home repair to 
assist homeowners who live in the City of Rockford.   
 

 
____________________________________________________________  
Income #1 – RAHFH has received $250,000 from RHDC to invest in critical home repair in the 
City of Rockford 
Income #2 - RAHFH has received $250,000 from the City of Rockford to invest in critical home 
repair in the City of Rockford.  
Income #3 – RAHFH is requesting from Winnebago County $250,000 to invest in critical home 
repairs for residences in Winnebago County.   

Expense #1: Materials and labor for critical home repairs are estimates at $10,000 per project.  
Material costs could include plywood and shingles for roofs, lumber for porch repairs, windows 
and doors, interior and exterior paint, materials for accessibility modifications like handrails and 
ramps, etc.  RAHFH will work with local contractors and volunteers to complete each of the 
critical home repairs.   

Expense #2:  Indirect costs for the critical home repair program includes; the salary and 
benefits for RAHFH’s Project Manager and Estimator who handles the project from home 
assessment, ordering materials, to executing the repairs, the purchase of a work van for use by 
our Project Manager, and the cost in time of our administrative staff – our Communications 

Revenue Sources Source 2022
Income #1 RHDC 250,000.00$ 
Income #2 City of Rockford 250,000.00$ 
Income #3 Requested from Winnebago County 250,000.00$ 
Total Requested 750,000.00$ 

Expense Description 2022
Expense #1 Materials and labor for repairs 560,000.00$ 
Expense #2 Indirect costs 190,000.00$ 
Total Expenses 750,000.00$ 



Director, Volunteer Manager, Office Assistant, Business Manager, and Homeowner Services 
Director, all of whom report to the Executive Director. This team will market the program, field 
the high number of inquiries about the program, accept and review applications for the 
program, coordinate volunteers for the program, and structure the financing for the approved 
participants. There will also be some indirect cost associated with printing and advertising 
materials.  

7. Expected Outcomes and Evaluation 

By broadly marketing this critical repair program, by selecting applicants who have a 
demonstrated need and fall within our designated income range (below 80% of the AMI), and 
by assessing and completing the repairs needed on these applicants' homes, we can guarantee 
that participating homeowners get needed help with preserving their existing homes and that 
they will reap the benefits of these repairs in the areas of safety, comfort, and long-term 
housing tenure.   

We will evaluate the success of the program through the following steps: 

1) We will assess the integrity of the structure and safety of the home through an 
inspection before and after 

2) There will be a record of the assessed value of the home before and after, which we will 
evaluate 

3) We will assess the homeowner's perception of the home before and after through 
surveying 

4) If applicable, we will assess the homeowner’s utility costs before and after (this will be 
applicable in situations where work relates to windows, doors, insulation, or 
mechanicals)  

In the long term, these projects will also have a lasting benefit to the neighborhoods in which 
the homes are located, because the integrity of the home will be preserved, and the structure 
will be less likely to become vacant and blighted. Vacant and blighted houses have lasting 
negative impacts on communities, so mitigating these neighborhood-wide consequences by 
keeping homes occupied is certainly of long-term benefit, even if difficult to quantify. In most 
cases, the house will also have improved appearance and curb appeal as well.  

A final, significant outcome is that the property tax base of Winnebago County will be 
preserved by this effort in the long run because the post-improvement assessed value of the 
properties will be higher, thus the property taxes generated by each served property will be 
higher.   



8. Conclusive Statement 

At RAHFH, we believe in housing that is safe. We believe in housing that is decent. We believe 
in housing that is healthy.  And we believe in housing that is affordable. We know that by 
strengthening housing, we not only strengthen households; we strengthen our community at 
large. By investing more deeply in critical home repair as an effort to complement our 
traditional affordable homeownership program, RAHFH can work in concert with the County 
and other entities to serve a broader spectrum of our low-income population. With the proper 
resources, RAHFH can execute the critical home repairs needed to preserve the aging housing 
stock so that those houses can remain safe, taxable, affordable, owner-occupied homes for our 
low-income and aging residents.   

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 

 

Prepared By:    David J. Rickert 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     10-20-2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution to Fund Northern Illinois Food Bank with ARPA   
    Funds  

County Code:    N/A 

Board Meeting Date:   10-27-2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   Yes                        Appropriation Amount:    $50,000                                                   

If not, explain funding source:  American Rescue Plan Act  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   61300               Budget Impact:    N/A 
 
Background Information:   Northern Illinois Food Bank is requesting ARPA funding to 
purchase nutritious food items that will be distributed to member agencies in Winnebago 
County at no cost to them and through our Winnebago Community Market. The economic and 
health impact of the pandemic has increased the number of residents facing food-insecurity 
The Food Bank has 38 member agencies in the county and has distributed 6.2 million meals in 
the first nine months of FY22 (July 2021 - March 2022).  

Recommendation:     N/A 

 
Contract/Agreement:    See attachment 
 
Legal Review:    N/A 
 
Baker Tilly Review:   Approved 
 
Follow-Up:      Funds are subject to compliance with ARPA requirements and sub  
    recipient agreement 
 



County Board: 10/27/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION TO FUND  
NORTHERN ILLINOIS FOOD BANK  

WITH ARPA FUNDS 
 

 WHEREAS, Northern Illinois Food Bank is requesting ARPA funding to purchase nutritious 
          food items that will be distributed to member agencies in Winnebago County 
          at no cost to them and through our Winnebago Community Market. The  
          economic and health impact of the pandemic has increased the number of  
          residents facing food-insecurity The Food Bank has 38 member agencies in  
          the county and has distributed 6.2 million meals in the first nine months of  
          FY22 (July 2021 - March 2022).; and 

 
WHEREAS, in May 2021, Winnebago County Board received funds through the   

          American Rescue Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, 
          Illinois, has reviewed the proposal for the aforementioned request and  
          recommends awarding; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

      Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is authorized to disburse $50,000 
         to Northern Illinois Food Bank for said activities. Subject to the  
         attached terms and conditions in the sub recipient agreement. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective  
             immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is  
          hereby authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this   
          Resolution to Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board  
          Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                           

                                                                                                               
 



 

 
 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
         FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 

ARP SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 
 

By and Between 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

and 
NORTHERN ILLINOIS FOOD BANK 

FOR AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (“ARP”) FUNDS 
 
THIS ARP SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter “AGREEMENT”) is made 
by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a body politic and corporate 
(hereinafter “COUNTY”), and the Northern Illinois Food Bank (hereinafter 
“RECIPIENT”). 

 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, President Joseph R. Biden signed into law the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (hereinafter “ARP”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 10, 2021, the United States Department of the Treasury (hereinafter 
“US TREASURY”) published guidance regarding the allowable usage of the Coronavirus State 
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (hereinafter “SLFRF”) to be disseminated to local 
governments in accordance with the ARP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the grand total allocation of SLFRF funds to the COUNTY, as published by the US 
TREASURY, is $54,886,298.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY received the first fifty percent (50%) of its SLFRF allocation 
($27,443,149.00) on May 15, 2021 and the second allocation on June 9, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the RECIPIENT, submitted a written request to the COUNTY on April 26th, 2022 
for one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in COVID-19 relief funds to provide economic 
assistance to a nonprofit organization impacted by COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY intends to allocate a portion of its SLFRF funds to Northern Illinois 
Food Bank within Winnebago County, Illinois that has suffered negative economic impacts as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic in accordance with all federal, state, and local guidelines 
regarding the usage of SLFRF funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, under section 602(c)(3) of the ARP, the COUNTY may transfer funds to a 
private nonprofit entity for the purpose of meeting ARP’s goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, in an effort to provide additional guidance regarding the eligible uses of SLFRF 
funds, the US TREASURY published a document containing answers to Frequently Asked 
Questions regarding Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds as of July 19, 2021 
(hereinafter “FAQ”); and



 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 

WHEREAS, during their regular public meeting on 10-27-2022, the County Board of 
Winnebago County, Illinois (hereinafter “BOARD”) approved the aforementioned request 
from the RECIPIENT subject to all federal, state, and local guidelines regarding the usage of 
SLFRF funds, including any contractual guidelines set forth by the BOARD, as well as any 
audit requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY and RECIPIENT desire to enter into this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are incorporated herein 
by reference, and the terms and conditions set forth below, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM 
This Agreement shall commence when last executed by all parties and remain in effect no 
later than December 31, 2024, unless terminated by the COUNTY in writing. 

 
2. GRAND TOTAL SLFRF FUNDS TO BE DISSEMINATED TO RECIPIENT 

The grand total sub award of SLFRF funds to be disseminated by the COUNTY to 
the RECIPIENT as part of this Agreement shall not exceed fifty thousand dollars 
($50,000). 

 
3. LIMITATIONS REGARDING THE USE OF SLFRF FUNDS 

The RECIPIENT shall ensure that all expenditures utilizing SLFRF funds received in 
accordance with this Agreement shall be limited to only those eligible services outlined 
in Section 602 (c) (3) of the US TREASURY ARP FAQ, which states that: 
 
Under section 602(c)(3) of the Social Security Act, a State, territory, or Tribal government may 
transfer funds to a “private nonprofit organization . . . , a Tribal organization . . . , a public 
benefit corporation involved in the transportation of passengers or cargo, or a special-purpose 
unit of State or local government.” Similarly, section 603(c)(3) authorizes a local government to 
transfer funds to the same entities (other than Tribal organizations). The interim final rule 
clarified that the lists of transferees in sections 602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) are not exclusive, and the 
final rule clarified that recipients may transfer funds to any entity to carry out, as a subrecipient, 
an eligible activity on behalf of the SLFRF recipient (transferor), as long as they comply with 
the SLFRF Award Terms and Conditions and other applicable requirements. A transferee 
receiving a transfer from a recipient under sections 602(c)(3) and 603(c)(3) will be considered a 
subrecipient and will be expected to comply with all subrecipient reporting requirements. 
Additionally, a recipient can provide funds to an entity, including a nonprofit organization, for 
the purpose of directly benefitting the entity as a result of the entity experiencing a public health 
impact or negative economic impact of the pandemic. In this instance, these entities will be 
considered beneficiaries, not subrecipients, and will not be expected to comply with subrecipient 
reporting requirements. Beneficiary reporting requirements will apply.  

 
4. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ARP  

In order to ensure compliance with the existing ARP guidelines set forth by the US 
TREASURY – while also ensuring that all expenditures within the scope of this 
Agreement adhere to future guidelines that may be established by the US TREASURY 



 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

during the term of this Agreement – the RECIPIENT, when requesting reimbursement for 
eligible ARP expenditures, shall provide to the COUNTY a comprehensive and detailed 
list of all such expenditures on an itemized invoice, and shall also provide any backup 
documentation to support such expenditures. Said invoice must include a statement, 
signed by the RECIPIENT, indicating that all expenditures therein comport with the 
guidelines of the ARP as set forth by the US TREASURY. Reimbursement requests shall 
be submitted to the COUNTY no more than once per month. No reimbursement requests 
may be submitted to the COUNTY after December 31, 2024. 

 
5. TIMELINE REGARDING THE DISSEMINATION OF FUNDS TO RECIPIENT 

Upon receipt of the RECIPIENT’s complete reimbursement request, the COUNTY shall 
disseminate funds for all eligible ARP expenditures therein within twenty (20) days of 
receipt of said reimbursement request. The dissemination of SLFRF funds shall only 
occur after the COUNTY reviews the RECIPIENT’s reimbursement request to ensure 
that all expenditures detailed therein qualify for reimbursement in accordance with all 
published federal, state, and local guidance regarding the use of SLFRF funds as 
specified in the ARP. All payments from the COUNTY to the RECIPIENT are 
contingent on the availability of SLFRF funds to the COUNTY, and further subject to all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the governance of SLFRF funds within 
the ARP. 

 
6. EVOLUTION OF ARP GUIDANCE FROM THE US TREASURY 

The COUNTY may request additional information from the RECIPIENT, as needed, to 
meet any additional guidelines regarding the use of SLFRF funds that may be established 
by the US TREASURY during the scope of this Agreement. 

 
7. TERMINATION 

The COUNTY may terminate this Agreement, for convenience or otherwise and for no 
consideration or damages, upon prior written notice to the RECIPIENT. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Each party under the Agreement shall be for all purposes an independent Contractor. 
Nothing contained herein will be deemed to create an association, a partnership, a joint 
venture, or a relationship of principal and agent, or employer and employee between the 
parties. The RECIPIENT shall not be, or be deemed to be, or act or purport to act, as an 
employee, agent, or representative of the COUNTY for any purpose. 

 
9. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

The RECIPIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the COUNTY, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and representatives harmless from and against any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or expenses, including without limitation personal 
injury, bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or damage to or destruction of property, 
which are alleged or proven to be caused in whole or in part by an act or omission of the 
RECIPIENT, its officers, directors, employees, and/or agents relating to the 
RECIPIENT’s performance or failure to perform under this Agreement. This section shall 



 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 

survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GUIDELINES 
The RECIPIENT shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and all requirements 
and published guidance set forth regarding the usage of any and all monies appropriated 
under the ARP. 

 
11. MAINTENANCE AND AUDIT OF RECORDS 

The RECIPIENT shall maintain records, books, documents, and other materials relevant 
to its performance under this Agreement. These records shall be subject to inspection, 
review, and audit by the COUNTY or its designees, and the US TREASURY for five (5) 
years following termination of this Agreement. If it is determined during the course of 
the audit that the RECIPIENT was reimbursed for unallowable costs under this 
Agreement or any, the RECIPIENT agrees to promptly reimburse the COUNTY for such 
payments upon request. 

 
12. NOTICES 

Any notices desired or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be 
deemed received three (3) days after deposit with the US Postal Service (postage fully 
prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested), and addressed to the party to which it is 
intended at its last known address, or to such person or address as either party shall 
designate to the other from time to time in writing forwarded in like manner: 
 

RECIPIENT 
 

Northern Illinois Food Bank 
273 Dearborn Court 
Geneva, IL 60134 

 
 

COUNTY 
Winnebago County Administration Building 

Attn: Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 
404 Elm Street 

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

 
13. IMPROPER INFLUENCE 

Each party warrants that it did not and will not employ, retain, or contract with any 
person or entity on a contingent compensation basis for the purpose of seeking, obtaining, 
maintaining, or extending this Agreement. Each party agrees, warrants, and represents 
that no gratuity whatsoever has been or will be offered or conferred with a view towards 
obtaining, maintaining, or extending this Agreement. 

 
 



 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

 
14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The elected and appointed officials and employees of the parties shall not have any 
personal interest, direct or indirect, which gives rise to a conflict of interest. 
 

15. TIME 
Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

 
16. SURVIVAL 

The provisions of this Agreement that by their sense and purpose should survive 
expiration or termination of the Agreement shall so survive. Those provisions include 
without limitation Indemnification and Maintenance and Audit of Records. 

 
17. AMENDMENT 

No amendment or modification to the Agreement shall be effective without prior written 
consent of the authorized representatives of the parties. 

 
18. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE 

The Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the State of Illinois, both 
as to interpretation and performance, without regard to conflicts of law or choice of law 
provisions. Any action arising out of or in conjunction with the Agreement may be 
instituted and maintained only in the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit of 
Winnebago County, Illinois. 
 

19. NON-WAIVER 
No failure on the part of the COUNTY to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the 
COUNTY of any right hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the 
exercise of any other right. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and not 
exclusive of any remedy available to the COUNTY at law or in equity. 

 
20. BINDING EFFECT 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 
their respective successors. 

 
21. ASSIGNMENT 

The RECIPIENT shall not assign or transfer any of its interests in or obligations under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the COUNTY. 

 
22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the COUNTY and the 
RECIPIENT for the use of funds received under this Agreement and it supersedes all 
prior or contemporaneous communications and proposals, whether electronic, oral, or 
written between the parties with respect to this Agreement. 



 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

 
23. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

Nothing herein shall or be deemed to create or confer any right, action, or benefit in, to, 
or on the part of any person or entity that is not a party to this Agreement. This provision 
shall not limit any obligation which either party has to the US TREASURY in 
connection with the use of ARP funds, including the obligations to provide access to 
records and cooperate with audits as provided in this Agreement. 

 
24. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

Recipients of Federal financial assistance from the US TREASURY are required to meet 
legal requirements relating to nondiscrimination and nondiscriminatory use of Federal 
funds. Those requirements include ensuring that entities receiving Federal financial 
assistance from the US TREASURY do not deny benefits or services, or otherwise 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin (including limited English 
proficiency), disability, age, or sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), in 
accordance with the following authorities: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title 
VI) Public Law 88-352, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-1 et seq., and the Department's implementing 
regulations, 31 CFR part 22; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), 
Public Law 93-112, as amended by Public Law 93-516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the Department's 
implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 28; Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Public Law 
94-135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., and the Department implementing regulations at 31 CFR 
part 23. 

 
25. SEVERABILITY 

In the event that one or more provisions of this Agreement shall be determined to be 
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction or agency having jurisdiction thereof, the 
remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and the invalid 
provisions shall be deemed deleted. 

 
26. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in on or more counterparts, any of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

 
27. AUTHORIZATION 

Each party signing below warrants to the other party, that they have the full power and 
authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom they sign. 

 
 
 

*** 



 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed and shall become effective as of the last 
date signed below: 
 
 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS      
a body politic and corporate 
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Joseph V. Chiarelli       
Chairman of the County Board of the   
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
RECIPIENT  
 
 
________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
Northern Illinois Food Bank 
273 Dearborn Court 
Geneva, IL 60134 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Attachment 

 
 







 

  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date:   October 20, 2022 
Resolution Title:  Resolution for Approval for Workman’s Compensation Settlements   
Board Meeting Date: October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                          Appropriation Amount:  
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535    Budget Impact:  

 
 
Background Information:  Settlement for Jonathan in the amount of $50,369.66.  
 
 
Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by Jaime Salgado, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its October 13, 2022 meeting. 
 
Contract/Agreement:    
 
Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 
JONATHAN STOLTZ VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having  claims asserted 
against it by Jonathon Stoltz for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $50,369.66 for the settlement  funding for 
his Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Jonathan Stoltz 
versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Jonathan Stoltz while in the 
employment of the Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $50,369.66 for the 
settlement for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Jonathan Stoltz in the amount 
of $50,369.66  shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date:   October 20, 2022 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Authorizing The Settlement of a Claim Against The County of Winnebago 
       Entitled Elizabeth Cook Versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                          Appropriation Amount:  
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535    Budget Impact:  

 
 
Background Information:  Settlement for Elizabeth Cook in the amount of $25,281.55.  
 
 
Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by Jaime Salgado, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its October 27, 2022 meeting. 
 
Contract/Agreement:    
 
Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 
ELIZABETH COOK VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having  claims asserted 
against it by Elizabeth Cook for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Animal 
Services, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $25,281.55 for the settlement  funding for 
his Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Elizabeth Cook 
versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Elizabeth Cook while in the 
employment of the Animal Services by payment of the amount of $25,281.55 for the settlement 
for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Elizabeth Cook in the amount 
of $25,281.55 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MC DONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Gary Caruana 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  October 20, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Amend Budget for Crisis Co-Responder Team 

Program. 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $118,000 
If not, explain funding source:   Mental Health Grant 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   60200 / 46410/ 02063     Budget Impact:   $118,000 
 
Background Information:  
  
The Sheriff’s Department is requesting a budget amendment to move funds from 
FY 2022 to FY 2023.  The Mental Health Grant approved funding for two (2) 
vehicles for the CCRT Team in the FY 2022 budget, however the vehicles were 
not received by September 30, 2022 
 
 
 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance:            Oct 20, 2022 
 Lay Over: Oct 27, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Nov 10, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 and recommends 
its adoption. 
 
 TITLE: Ordinance to Amend Budget for Crisis Co-Responder Team Program 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, The Sheriff’s CCRT ordered two cars in FY22, but they will not be received 
until FY23. This amendment is needed to allocate funds toward the purchase of the cars, which 
will be reimbursed by the Mental Health Board. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2023-002 CCRT Cars. 
. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

      
  

 
 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



10/20/2022
Sheriff Gary Caruana

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

60200 46410/02063 Automobiles $0 $0 $0 $118,000 $118,000

Revenue
60200 32130/02063 Local Operating Grant ($367,986) $0 ($367,986) ($118,000) ($485,986)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Mental Health Grant

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  $0

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

There was $118,000 in FY 2022 Budget for the two (2) vehicles for the CCRT, however, we did not receive the vehicles by the end 
of FY 2022. Due to not receiving them until FY 2023 an amendment is needed to provide the funds to purchase them in the 
current budget. These are being funded from a Mental Health Grant

2023-002

60200DEPT. BUDGET NO.



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Gary Caruana 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  October 20, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Amend Budget for Summit Academy SRO 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $195,709 
If not, explain funding source:   Regional Office of Education 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   24000               Budget Impact:   $195,709  
 
Background Information: The Sheriff’s Office entered into an Agreement with the Boone-

Winnebago Regional Office of Education – Summit Academy for a 
School Resource Officer Program.  The School District will be 
reimbursing the County 75% of the total cost of the Deputy’s 
salary and benefits.  They will also be reimbursing the County for 
a vehicle, training and all equipment needed for a new deputy.  
We will be invoicing the District for all over-time expenses. 

 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance:            Oct 20, 2022 
 Lay Over: Oct 27, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Nov 10, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 and recommends 
its adoption. 
 
              TITLE: Ordinance to Amend Budget for Summit Academy SRO 
 

ORDINANCE 
 WHEREAS, The Sheriff’s Office has entered into an agreement with Summit Academy for 
a School Resource Officer Program. The school district will be reimbursing the County 75% of 
the total cost of the Deputy’s salary and benefits. They will also be reimbursing the County for a 
vehicle, training, and all equipment needed for the new deputy. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2023-003 Summit Academy SRO. 
. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
      



2 
 

  
 
 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



10/20/2022
Sheriff Gary Caruana

0001

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

24000 41110 Regular Salaries $12,646,498 $0 $12,646,498 $80,163 $12,726,661
24000 41130 Overtime $826,070 $0 $826,070 $4,000 $830,070
24000 41135 Holiday Pay $454,941 $0 $454,941 $3,690 $458,631
24000 41211 Health insurance/ICMA $136,240 $0 $136,240 $1,040 $137,280
13500 41211/13502 Health Insurance $3,433,378 $0 $3,433,378 $22,021 $3,455,399
49300 41231 IMRF $4,000,000 $0 $4,000,000 $8,922 $4,008,922
49200 41241 FICA/Medicare $5,874,000 $0 $5,874,000 $6,415 $5,880,415
24000 41221 Life Insurance $3,969 $0 $3,969 $42 $4,011
24000 42270 Clothing $169,100 $0 $169,100 $950 $170,050
24000 42290 Other Dept Supplies $247,756 $0 $247,756 $6,776 $254,532
24000 43150 Medical $7,600 $0 $7,600 $600 $8,200
24000 43942 Training $321,654 $0 $321,654 $6,105 $327,759
24000 46410 Automobiles $165,000 $0 $165,000 $55,000 $220,000

Revenue
24000 32800 Sh-Govt Sheriff Svc Contacts ($4,059,258) $0 ($4,059,258) ($164,150) ($4,223,408)

$31,573
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Agreement with Summit Academy for reimbursement and the General Fund

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  $31,573

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

The Sheriff's Office entered into an agreement with the Boone-Winnebago Regional Office of Education - Summit Academy for a 
School Resource Officer Program. The School District will be reimbursing the County 75% of the total cost of the Deputies salary 
and benefits. They will also be reimbursing the County for a vehicle, training and all equipment needed for a new deputy. We 
will be invoicing the District for all over-time expenses.

2023-003

24000DEPT. BUDGET NO.

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Gary Caruana 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  October 20, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Amend Budget for Upgrades for EOC and an ESDA 

Director Vehicle 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $75,000 
If not, explain funding source:   REP Grant & General Fund 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   22000 / 43720/ 02011     Budget Impact:   $75,000 
 
Background Information:  
  
The Sheriff’s Department is requesting a budget amendment for upgrades needed 
in the EOC.  The requested amount was approved in FY 2022, however the funds 
were not spent and need to be amended in the FY 2023 budget.  Also, dollars were 
approved for a vehicle for the ESDA Director in the budget process, however were 
omitted in the final budget. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff Recommends 
 
Contract/Agreement:  N/A 
 
Legal Review:      N/A 
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance:            Oct 20, 2022 
 Lay Over: Oct 27, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Nov 10, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 and recommends 
its adoption. 
 
 TITLE: Ordinance to Amend Budget for Upgrades for EOC and an ESDA Director Vehicle 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, There are EOC upgrades that were budgeted in FY22, but were not 
completed, so the budget in FY23 needs to be amended to include monies for those upgrades. 
Also there was a vehicle approved for the ESDA Director during the budget process but it did 
not make it into the final budget. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2023-004 ESDA Amendment. 
. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

      
  

 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



10/20/2022
Sheriff Gary Caruana

0001

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

22000 42290/02037 Other Dept Supplies $18,000 $0 $18,000 $20,000 $38,000
22000 46410 Automobiles $0 $0 $55,000 $55,000

Revenue

$75,000
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: REP Grant and the ARP Funds

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  $75,000

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

There was $20,000 in the FY22 Budget for EOC pgrades (equipment & installation), however the funds were not spent last fiscal 
year and need to be amended in the FY23 Budget. The dollars are funded though the REP Grant (funds have been received). The 
dollars for the ESDA Director's vehicle were approved in the FY23 budget process, but we omitted in the final budget.

2023-004

22000DEPT. BUDGET NO.



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Prepared By:   Purchasing Department for Facilities 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    October 20, 2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding ARP Funded Administration Building Carpet 
Replacement 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:  October 27, 2022 

Budget Information: 
 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes, it was in ARP                     Appropriation Amount:   $42,270.00 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  61300-43710-RP030                               Budget Impact:   N/A  
 

Background Information:   
In ARP Phase 1, the County Board approved a budget of up to $45,000 for replacement carpet 
in the County Administration Building in the public areas of the first, third and fifth floors.  The 
replacement carpet was approved by Baker Tilly due to the fact that it is hygienic antimicrobial 
carpeting. By updating to the new, hygienic antimicrobial carpeting, airborne particles 
associated with COVID-19 will be prevented from adhering to surfaces.  
 
A total of five quotes (see Resolution Exhibit A) were received and evaluated by the Facilities 
Department. The lowest quote is from Loves Park company, Commercial Flooring Contractors 
Inc. 
 
Recommendation:  
 

The Assistant Director of Facilities, Reid Tennant recommended approval of the award to the 
lowest responsible bidder, Commercial Flooring Contractors Inc., for the replacement of the 
County Administration Building carpet.   
 
 
 

Baker Tilly Review:   
Project was approved in the Baker Tilly’s ARP compliance review.  
 
 



County Board:  10/27/2022 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

 

RESOLUTION AWARDING ARP FUNDED ADMINISTRATION BUILDING CARPET REPLACEMENT  
 

 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Facilities Department is required to maintain the 
upkeep of all County buildings; and, 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County Administration Building is in need of replacement carpet on 
the first, third and five floors; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the purchase of replacement carpet was a Baker Tilly approved, ARP funded 

expense; and, 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has reviewed the quotes for the aforementioned 
service and awards as follows:  

 
 

COMMERCIAL FLOORING CONTRACTORS INC. 
5283 ZENITH PARKWAY 
LOVES PARK, IL 61111 

                                                                   (See RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A)      
        

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Facilities Department is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago a Purchase Order with COMMERCIAL FLOORING CONTRACTORS INC., 5283 ZENITH 
PARKWAY, LOVES PARK, ILLINOIS 61111 in the amount of FORTY-TWO THOUSAND, TWO 
HUNDRED AND SEVENTY DOLLARS ($42,270.00). 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer, Director of 
Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                  

  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA  PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
                   RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 

 
QUOTE SUMMARY TAB - August 1, 2022 

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING CARPET REPLACEMENT  
 
 

 
CARPET VENDORS 

 

Commercial 
Flooring 

Contractors 
(Loves Park) 

 
Lonnie’s 

CarpetMax 
(Rockford) 

 

Canyon Flooring 
Kitchen & Bath 
(Loves Park) 

Carpetland USA 
(Rockford) 

Empire-Today 
(Northlake, IL) 

                    
 
             BASE QUOTE 

 
 

$40,670.00 $45,000.05 $45,695.00 $44,950.00 

$42,075.55 
$43,502.31 
$49,302.42 
$47,323.04 
$48,749.80 
$54,549.91 

OPTION A $800.00 $2,313.65 $3,174.00 $5,625.00 $2,461.79 
$3,022.11 

 
OPTION B 

 
$800.00 $2,355.54 $2,702.00 $4,983.00 $2,148.24 

$2,675.60 

GRAND TOTAL $42,270.00 $49,672.24 $51,571.00 $55,558.00 

 
$46,685.58 
$48,112.34 
$53,912.45 
$53,020.75 
$54,447.51 
$60,246.62 

 
 
  

  
  
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the General Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $16,733,659 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Sixteen Million, Seven 
Hundred and Thirty-Three Thousand, Six Hundred and Fifty-Nine Dollars ($16,733,659) on all 
the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “General Corporate Tax”: 
for the year 2022 and that the County Clerk of said county be and is hereby authorized and directed 
to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth 
in the General County Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
GENERAL FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of general 
county government as set forth in “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Sixteen 
Million, Seven Hundred and Thirty-Three Thousand, Six Hundred and Fifty-Nine Dollars 
($16,733,659) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a 
“General Corporate Tax”:  for the year 2022 and that the County Clerk of said county be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the General County Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the IMRF Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $5,467,210 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Five Million, Four 
Hundred and Sixty-Seven, Two Hundred and Ten Dollars ($5,467,210) on all the taxable property 
in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as 
set forth in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Pension code,” as amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Five 
Million, Four Hundred and Sixty-Seven Thousand, Two Hundred and Ten Dollars ($5,467,210) on 
all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a 
“Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Tax”:  and that the County Clerk of said County be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 2023 
Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 
 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the County Highway Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $2,376,780 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million, Three 
Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand, Seven Hundred and Eighty Dollars ($2,376,780) on all the 
taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “County 
Highway Tax”: for the purpose set forth in chapter 121, paragraph 5-401 and 5-601 of the Illinois 
Revised Statutes - 1981 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as 
set forth in the County Highway Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Three Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand, Seven Hundred and Eighty Dollars ($2,376,780) on 
all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a 
“County Highway Tax”: for the purpose set forth in chapter 121, paragraph 5-401 and 5-601 of 
the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby 
authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects 
and purposes as set forth in the County Highway Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the County Bridge Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $233,360 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Hundred, Thirty-
Three Thousand, Three Hundred and Sixty Dollars ($233,360) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “County Bridge Tax”: for the 
purpose of constructing any bridge or bridges over a stream, or any approach or approaches thereto 
by means of an embankment or trestle work on a public road, as provided by law and that the 
County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation 
that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Bridge Fund 
2023 Appropriations 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY BRIDGE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Hundred, Thirty-Three Thousand, Three-Hundred and Sixty Dollars ($233,360) on all the taxable 
property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “County Bridge 
Tax”:  for the purpose of constructing any bridge or bridges over a stream, or any approach or 
approaches thereto by means of an embankment or trestle work on a public road, as provided 
by law and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to 
extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth 
in the County Bridge Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Federal Aid Matching Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $1,776,790 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, Seven 
Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand, Seven Hundred and Ninety Dollars ($1,776,790) on all the 
taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “Federal 
Aid Matching Tax”: for the purpose of providing funds for the proportionate share of the expenses 
in construction of highways in the federal aid secondary system, as provided by law, in chapter 
121, paragraph 5-603, of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981, and that the County Clerk of said 
County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said 
amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Federal Aid Matching Fund 2023 
Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
FEDERAL AID MATCHING FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Seven Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand, Seven Hundred and Ninety Dollars ($1,776,790) 
on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, 
as a “Federal Aid Matching Tax”:  for the purpose of providing funds for the proportionate share 
of the expenses in construction of highways in the federal aid secondary system, as provided by 
law, in chapter 121, paragraph 5-603, of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981, and that  the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that 
will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Federal Aid Matching 
Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  David J. Rickert 

Committee:  Finance Committee 

Committee Date: October 20th, 2022 

Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 
for the Health Department Fund 

County Code:      Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 27th, 2022 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $2,611,120 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, 
Nine Hundred and Nineteen Thousand Dollars ($2,611,120) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “county public health fund tax”: for the year 2021 
and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend 
a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
County Public Health Fund 2022 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the Fiscal Year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act in Relation to 
the Establishment and Maintenance of County and Multiple County Public Health Departments,” 
as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Six Hundred Eleven Thousand, One Hundred and Twenty Dollars ($2,611,120) on all the 
taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “county public health fund 
tax”:  for the year 2022 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes 
as set forth in the County Public Health Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County Of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Tort Judgement and Liability Fund. 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $3,353,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three Million, Three 
Hundred and Fifty-Three Thousand Dollars ($3,353,000) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance 
Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend 
a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Tort 
Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
TORT JUDGMENT AND LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort 
Immunity Act,” as amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three 
Million, Three Hundred and Fifty-Three Thousand Dollars ($3,353,000) on all the taxable property 
in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “Tort Judgment and 
Liability Insurance Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized 
and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and 
purposes as set forth in the Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Social Security Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $3,373,260 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three Million, Three 
Hundred and Seventy-Three Thousand, Two Hundred and Sixty Dollars ($3,373,260) on all the 
taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “Social 
Security and Medicare Fund Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby 
authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects 
and purposes as set forth in the Social Security and Medicare Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
SOCIAL SECURITY AND MEDICARE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Revised Statutes chapter 108-1/2, paragraph 7-
172.2.”.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three 
Million, Three Hundred and Seventy Three Thousand, Two Hundred and Sixty Dollars 
($3,373,260) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said 
year 2022, as a “Social Security and Medicare Fund Tax”:  and that the County Clerk of said County 
be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said 
amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Social Security and Medicare Fund 2023 
Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Veterans Assistance Fund  
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $658,620 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Six Hundred Fifty-Eight 
Thousand, Six Hundred and Twenty Dollars ($658,620) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “Veterans Assistance Tax”: and that 
the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Veterans 
Assistance Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
VETERANS ASSISTANCE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Six 
Hundred Fifty-Eight Thousand, Six Hundred and Twenty Dollars ($658,620) on all the taxable 
property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022, as a “Veterans 
Assistance Tax”:  and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes 
as set forth in the Veterans Assistance Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Detention Home Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $1,836,380 
 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, Eight 
Hundred Thirty-Six Thousand, Three Hundred and Eighty Dollars ($1,836,380) on all the taxable 
property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the year 2022 for the purpose of 
purchasing, erecting, leasing, or otherwise providing, establishing, supporting, and maintaining 
such detention home, and said tax was authorized by the legal voters of the County of Winnebago 
on November 2, 1954. the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed 
to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth 
in the Detention Home Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
DETENTION HOME FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Authorities 
to Provide for the Temporary Care and Custody of Dependent, Delinquent, or Truant Children, 
and to Levy and Collect a Tax for the Purpose.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Eight Hundred Thirty-Six Thousand, Three-Hundred and Eighty Dollars ($1,836,380) on 
all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the year 2022 for the 
purpose of purchasing, erecting, leasing, or otherwise providing, establishing, supporting, and 
maintaining such detention home, and said tax was authorized by the legal voters of the County 
of Winnebago on November 2, 1954.  the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized 
and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and 
purposes as set forth in the Detention Home Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARNEA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Historical Museum Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $121,300 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Hundred Twenty One 
Thousand, Three Hundred Dollars ($121,300) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “Historical Museum Tax”: for the year 2022 and that the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will 
produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Historical Museum Fund 2023 
Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
HISTORICAL MUSEUM FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth IN “An Act to Levy Taxes for the Maintenance of Historical 
Museums,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Hundred Twenty One Thousand, Three Hundred Dollars ($121,300) on all the taxable property in 
the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “Historical Museum Tax”:  for the year 2022 and 
that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate 
of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Historical Museum Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Nursing Home Operations Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $1,919,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, Nine 
Hundred and Nineteen Thousand Dollars ($1,919,000) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a County Tax for the purpose of maintaining a County Nursing 
Home for the year 2022 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposed as 
set forth in the County Nursing Home Operations Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY NURSING HOME OPERATIONS FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago did adopt a resolution for a 
referendum to establish a levy for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a majority of the voters of Winnebago County, Illinois voting in the election of 
November 7, 1989 voted in favor of authorizing the County to levy and collect a tax at a rate not 
to exceed .10% for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Revise the 
Law in Relation to Counties,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Nine Hundred and Nineteen Thousand Dollars ($1,919,000) on all the taxable property 
in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a County Tax for the purpose of maintaining a 
County Nursing Home for the year 2022 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby 
authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects 
and purposed as set forth in the County Nursing Home Operations Fund 2023 Appropriations, 
and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 20th, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2023 

for the Childrens Advocacy Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27th, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $154,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Hundred, Fifty-Four 
Thousand Dollars ($154,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2022 for the purpose of establishing and maintaining a Children’s 
Advocacy Center, and said tax was authorized by the voters of the County of Winnebago on April 
20, 1993. the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a 
rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Children’s Advocacy Project Fund 2023 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2022 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
CHILDREN’S ADVOCACY PROJECT FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2022 through September 30, 2023; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in the “Children’s 
Advocacy Center Act.”  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Hundred, Fifty-Four Thousand ($154,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2022 for the purpose of establishing and 
maintaining a Children’s Advocacy Center, and said tax was authorized by the voters of the 
County of Winnebago on April 20, 1993.  the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby 
authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects 
and purposes as set forth in the Children’s Advocacy Project Fund 2023 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 October 27, 2022  
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

       PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:     

1.  Z-04-22 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 5.46 +-ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE RA, RURAL AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) requested by Harold 
and Penny Wirtjes, Property Owners, represented by James Hursh, Attorney, for a portion of 
the property that is commonly known as 11834 Winslow Road, Durand, IL 61024 in Harrison 
Township. 

        Part of PIN: 06-17-400-002                                                                                 C.B. District 2                                                                                 
       Lesa Rating:  Very High                                       Consistent W/2030 LRMP-Future Map: NO 
        ZBA Recommendation:  MOTION TO APPROVE FAILED (3-3)  
        ZC Recommendation: TBD 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

2.  COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, December 13, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 
 303 the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting        
     is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, December 21, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 
 of the County Administration Building.   

    --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, October 17, 2022   
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov      

 
Document Title:  Resolution To Grant Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) From Host Fees To The 

Rockford Area Convention And Visitors Bureau (RACVB) To Support The 
2022 Stroll On State Event 

 
County Code: NA 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $5,000 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: 41700 - 43190 Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 
Winnebago County has historically supported Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) to promote tourism and special events in the region. This request is for a grant of $5,000 
for the “Stroll On State” event in downtown Rockford, which will be in-person. The County 
approved this same amount ($5,000) in 2021 for in-person last year and also in 2020, but that 
was a virtual event. 
 
Recommendation:  
Winnebago County has historically supported Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) to promote tourism and special events that spur positive economic impact to the region. 
The Economic Development Committee along with the County Board has supported the efforts 
of RACVB numerous times in recent years, its more recent financial assistance from host fees are 
Stroll-On-State 2021-CR-135 ($5,000), 2020-CR-143 ($5,000) and the WNIT tournament 2021-CR-
026 ($20,000). 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB) updates the Economic Development 
Committee on a quarterly basis and/or the entire Board as they see fit. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by:  John Sweeney  County Board Meeting October 27, 2022 

            
 

RESOLUTION 
 of the  
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 2022 CR _________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION TO GRANT FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000) FROM HOST FEES 
TO THE ROCKFORD AREA CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU (RACVB) TO 

SUPPORT THE 2022 STROLL ON STATE EVENT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois supports the growth of economic 
development for the region by the attraction of tourism and special events to the area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau, (hereinafter 

“RACVB”) works to grow the economic impact to the Winnebago County Region; and 
 
WHEREAS, the RACVB is requesting $5,000.00 (Five Thousand Dollars) to hold the 

annual special event in the region to draw visitors to downtown Rockford, Winnebago County 
for tourism by hosting Stroll on State in-person this year. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the County of Winnebago, Illinois will 
grant $5,000.00 (Five Thousand Dollars) to the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) from host fee funds to support tourism by Stroll on State. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors 

Bureau (RACVB) will be required to reimburse the County the $5,000 (Five Thousand Dollars) 
of this grant allocated to the “Stroll on State” event, should “Stroll on State” not occur in 2022. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Director of Regional Planning and Economic Development, County Administrator, the County 
Auditor, the County Finance Director, and the Executive Director of the Rockford Area 
Convention and Visitors Bureau. 

 
 

 

 

 

 



Respectfully submitted, 

        Economic Development Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN  DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK  

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



Winnebago County Annual Host Fee Award Policy Application 

If additional space is needed, make a note in the section(s), “See attachment”. 

ORGANIZATIONAL INFORMATION 

Organization Name: 

Contact (Point) Person: 

Contact Person 
Position: 

Contact Phone 
Number: 

( __ __ __ ) __ __ __ - __ __ __ __  Circle One:    Work     Home     Mobile     Other:__________

( __ __ __ ) __ __ __ - __ __ __ __    Circle One:    Work     Home     Mobile     Other:__________

Address(es) / 
Location(s) of Activity: 

1) ____________________________________________________________

2) ____________________________________________________________

3) ____________________________________________________________

Description of  the 
Organization: 

Requested Award 
Amount ($): $ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __. 00 

Proposed Use of Award 
(specific): 

Should address items, such 
as: what, who, when, 

where, how, etc.? 

RACVB is a private, non-profit organization established in 1984 to promote and champion efforts 
to make the Rockford Region an overnight visitor destination. The mission of RACVB is to drive 
quality of life and economic growth for our citizens through tourism marketing and destination 
development.

PRIORITY RESULTS:
1.1 CREATE ECONOMIC WEALTH: The Rockford Region experiences growth in tourism's 
leading indicators.

1.2 ENHANCE TOURISM PRODUCT: The Rockford Region offers unique and marketable 
experiences and venues that meet or exceed visitor expectations and enhance quality of life for 
citizens.

1.3 ENGAGE CONSTITUENTS ON BEHALF OF TOURISM: RACVB tourism marketing and 
destination development efforts have broad support among key stakeholders.

EXTERNAL ROLE STATEMENT:
The RACVB adds wealth to the region's economy by growing tourism.

5     0     0    0

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau

Kristen Paul

Director of Destination Development

8   1   5 4   8    9       1    6   6    1 x

Stroll on State takes place in downtown Rockford, IL

Stroll on State is celebrating its 10th year with the largest festival yet. Stroll on State has been a 
staple for our community and a means to support local business owners while bringing our 
community together through the magic of the holidays. 

In planning the 2022 Stroll on State, there have been increased expenses. These increases are in key 
areas vital in holding an in-person experience that follows recommendations and best practices 
post-pandemic and latest large-event safety protocols.   Support from the county will be paired with 
funding secured from over 2 private donors and in-kind support from partners such as the City of 
Rockford to cover the additional costs associated with producing this event. Funding will allow for 
the event to remain free and open to everyone throughout Winnebago County.

We want to offer a partnership in this year’s Stroll on State sponsorship option that helps spread 
cheer throughout the season. The sponsorship is attached and available for a $5,000 investment with 
many visible benefits and recognition, as shown on the attached document. Bringing the county 
together and celebrating remains at the heart of Stroll on State and this sponsorship will help keep 
the event free for the community.

See attachment



Winnebago County Annual Host Fee Award Policy Application 

If additional space is needed, make a note in the section(s), “See attachment”. 

Expected Program 
Outcomes Outlined: 

OTHER PARTICIPATING ORGANIZATION(S) 

Name(s) INVESTMENT 
Amount ($) or Type of Involvement (Description) 

$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __. 00 

Has the investment been formally/ 
officially approved? 

□ Approved
   Date: ______________ 

□ Anticipated
    Date: ______________ 

$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __. 00 

Has the investment been formally/ 
officially approved? 

□ Approved
   Date: ______________ 

□ Anticipated
    Date: ______________ 

$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __. 00 

Has the investment been formally/ 
officially approved? 

□ Approved
   Date: ______________ 

□ Anticipated
    Date: ______________ 

Required documents to be submitted by the Organization 

□ 501(c)(3) tax exempt status □ signed W-9 form

Applicant Signature Date 
**By signing this application, I hereby attest that this application and any accompanying documents are true, accurate, and 
correct to the best of my understanding. I further agree to follow the rules and guidelines as laid out within the “Winnebago 
County Annual Host Fee Policy”. 

Each year we collect results through surveys and wrap-up meetings that provide us with data showcasing the 
results of the event. Based upon this collected data, we expect the following outcomes:
• Participants of various income levels and socioeconomic statuses are able to participate in a free uplifting 
holiday experience resulting in a sentiment of welcoming diversity and increased civility within our region.
• Increased revenue for local participating businesses during the holiday season, specifically on days of 
promotion and activation.
• Positive experience, perception, and association with Winnebago County will result in increased visits to 
our region and support of local businesses throughout the year.

September 20, 2022

xx



PROMOTION

• Inclusion in all media releases

•  Name in all print advertising (2 million annual consumer impressions)

• Logo in post-event newspaper full-page thank you ads

• Logo on Stroll on State website

•  Special mentions on RACVB social media: Twitter, Facebook, Instagram (115,000+ consumer impressions)

•  Ability to use Stroll on State logo on company website/posts (content approval required)

ON-SITE

• Logo displayed on 10 gift boxes or planter signs in downtown Rockford

• 3 easy access parking passes

•  20 VIP passes to the RACVB Warming Lounge (complimentary snacks and non-alcoholic beverages,
cash bar, access to indoor restrooms, kid-friendly activities) (valid one per person)

Sponsorship
HOLIDAY SPIRIT SPONSOR

Updated March 2022

strollonstate.com
INVESTMENT = $5,000

2022



10/14/22, 11:32 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/2

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

Corporation File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

cyberdriveillinois.com is now ilsos.gov

Office of the Secretary of State Jesse White  

File Number 53594433

Entity Name ROCKFORD AREA CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU

Status
ACTIVE

Entity Type
CORPORATION

Type of Corp
NOT-FOR-PROFIT

Incorporation Date (Domestic)
Thursday, 27 September 1984

State
ILLINOIS

Duration Date
PERPETUAL

Name



10/14/22, 11:32 AM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/2

Fri Oct 14 2022

Annual Report

This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

JOHN ALAN GROH

Address
102 N MAIN ST 
ROCKFORD , IL 61101

Change Date
Thursday, 30 July 2009

Filing Date
Wednesday, 3 August 2022

For Year
2022

Return to Search 

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

(One Certificate per Transaction)

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/


 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, October 17, 2022 
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush & Jas Bilich 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov    

 
Document Title:  Resolution Approving The American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds For 

Economic Impact Program For The Chairman’s Initiative Group Four (4) 
Projects 

 
County Code: Resolution Establishing The American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds For Economic 

Impact Program Policy (2022-CR-012) 
 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $75,000 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code:  Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 

Winnebago County received in total approximately $55 million (County Board approved 
Phase 1 July 22, 2022, 2021-CO-057) from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, of which 
$1,000,000 (County Board Approved February 24, 2022, 2022-CR-012) will be used for Board 
Member Initiatives, as long as they are ARP compliant, reviewed by the external auditor, and 
approved by the County Board. These 5 listed Projects under Group Four (4) are what is to be 
considered by the Board, allocation amounts and Board Member participation may vary by end of 
Program. Program allocation use descriptions are listed with Program/Project Names. 
 
Recommendation:  
Administration supports the County Board Member initiatives requested from ARP funds to be 
used for economic development impacts for the community to combat the negative effects from 
COVID-19.  
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
None required, but Board Members may report back upon request for project updates. 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:permits@rped.wincoil.gov


 
 

SPONSORED BY: JOHN SWEENEY  
 

RESOLUTION 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2022 CR ______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (ARP) FUNDS FOR 
ECONOMIC IMPACT PROGRAM FOR THE CHAIRMAN’S INITIATIVE  

GROUP FOUR (4) PROJECTS 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2021 the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) became a recipient of 
American Rescue Plan Act (hereinafter “ARP”) funds from the federal government to assist in 
combating the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined that a portion of the award, one million dollars 
($1,000,000) of the total funds to be received, shall be used for economic development 
throughout the county due to the adverse impact of COVID-19; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Committee and the Winnebago County Board 
developed and approved the “American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds for Economic Impact 
Program Policy” (Program) in order to define the process for the allocation of ARP funds on 
February 24, 2022 (2022-CR-012); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Program provides Winnebago County Board Members the ability to 
allocate funds for projects within their district or within the geographic boundaries of Winnebago 
County, Illinois to assist with the negative economic impacts from COVID-19; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Resolution further substantiates the Program Projects approved by the 
previously established County Board ARP Policy and the External Auditor’s Review of the 
attached (Exhibit A) Projects listed.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the County Board hereby approves the Program Projects listed as 
“Exhibit A, Chairman’s Initiative Projects for Economic Impact, Group Four (4)”, as outlined 
and approved in the, “American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds for Economic Impact Program Policy 
and further approved by the external auditor to be ARP compliant. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Regional Planning and Economic Development Director, the County Administrator, the 
Chief Financial Officer, and the County Auditor.  

        



Respectfully Submitted,  
Economic Development Committee 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN  DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



EXHIBIT A
Chairman's Initiative Projects For Economic Impact, Group Four (4)

Page 1 of 1

PROJECT
BOARD MEMBER 
PARTICIPATION 

(may vary)

 ANTICIPATED 
ALLOCATION 

AMOUNT 
(may vary) 

PROPOSED USE

Blue 815
Fred Wescott, John 

Sweeney
 $         23,000 

A portion of these funds ($6,000)  will specifically be used to support the Community Outreach department within the 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office in purchasing equipment that can be utilized by the Community Officers for various 
events across the county that will help build relationships within the community (movie nights, holiday events, etc.)
Remaining funds will be used to directly impact our mission of educating the community about law enforcement, 
supporting law enforcement/first responders, helping to bridge the gap between community members and law 
enforcement by promoting, participating, and donating to various events and causes within the community and linked to 
local law enforcement agencies, and honoring fallen officers.

Rockford Family 
Peace Center

Angela Fellars  $         17,000 

The Family Peace Center proposes using this award for a legal fund for survivors of intimate partner violence who cannot 
otherwise secure legal representation through alternative pro bono partners. Specifically, this fund will assist clients of 
the Family Peace Center in paying for an emergency consultation and assistance drafting and filing documents related to 
custody of their child(ren). Eligibility criteria include: 1) they must be a client of the FPC, 2) they must have requested and 
been denied services from our other legal partners, and 3) the matter for which they are seeking legal assistance must 
involve custody of their children who they have in common with their abusive partner. The request can be made in the 
context of intake or case management services at the Family Peace Center. The survivor will be responsible for identifying 
the attorney and the attorney must agree to limited scope representation of the client and to invoice the Family Peace 
Center for a one-time payment for services not to exceed $3,000. 

Rockford Mass 
Transit District 
(RMTD)

Jaime Salgado  $         15,000 

Purchase of an RMTD bus passenger shelter. Once received, RMTD staff will assemble the shelter and install at Broadway 
and Seventh Street.
At minimum, the specific shelter specifications:
5’x10’ Eclipse Aluminum Structure
Four Sides; Front Centered Windscreen with Two ADA Openings
White Aluminum Powder Coat Painted Finish – RAL 9006
3/8” Clear Tempered Safety Glass
Arched Roof with Bronze Acrylic
4 – Two Piece Spun Anchor Boot Covers
6’ Eclipse Bench with Two Armrests and Black HDPE Bench Slats
Solar Lighting Package for General Illumination with Rigid Solar Panel and 6 Watt LED Light

Entrepreneur Club
Jaime Salgado, 
Dorothy Redd

 $         10,000 

The Entrepreneur Club provides vital economic development services to prospective, new and hopeful small business 
owners through educational events, one-on-one mentoring, and connectivity to community business partners, resources, 
expertise from several industries to support new business success. During the pandemic the organization was severely 
hurt by it's inability to meet in person and events came to a halt as did any funding opportunities. The funds would be 
utilized to reignite activities and put out new educational events for individiuals looking to either start new businesses 
and/or get access to resoucres and expertise from community partner professionals and organizations.

Friends of the 
Coronado

Angela Fellars  $         10,000 

FOC will use the ARP funds for the REACH for the Stars student outreach project at the Coronado Theatre. 
8,000 students, teachers and chaperones from the Rockford Public Schools (30% of the total RPS K-12 enrollment) all 4th, 
5th and 6th grade students+ other RPS special programs and educators, will attend a fully staged performance of The 
Peking Acrobats, March 15 and 16, 2023 at the Coronado Theatre at no cost to the student. 
FOC will implement the following REACH project activities:
* Contracting with the Peking Acrobats for (4) student performances
* Manage Coronado Theatre labor and production costs
* Coordinate school participation, transportation and distribution of educational materials.
* Complete final reporting of project outcome and impact



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier/Human Resources  

Committee:    Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:   October 20, 2022 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Establishing the County Holiday Schedule for 2023   

Board Meeting Date:   October 27, 2022  

 

 

Budget Information: 
  

Was item budgeted?   N/A                         Appropriation Amount:   N/A                                      

If not, explain funding source:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A                   Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
 
 
Background Information:    This is the annual holiday schedule for calendar year 2023, to be 
reviewed and approved by County Board.   
  
Recommendation:   Patrick Thompson and Human Resources have reviewed the resolution 

presented to the Board and recommend its approval.   

Contract/Agreement:  N/A  
 
Legal Review:  Reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
Follow-Up:  N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  October 27, 2022  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE COUNTY HOLIDAY SCHEDULE FOR 2023 
 

 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, pursuant to the Illinois Revised 
Statutes, Chapter 34, Paragraph 303, (12th), is authorized to fix the days and hours of opening and closing of the 
County offices and departments; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the County Board, AFSCME Local 473 and FOP Lodge 50 have agreed that the County Board 
shall designate the date upon which certain holidays shall be observed for purposes of their collective bargaining 
agreements. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that, for 
the calendar year 2023, all county offices and departments subject hereto shall be closed for all Saturdays, 
Sundays, and the following holidays subject to adjustment, if necessary, based on collective bargaining 
negotiations: 
 

DATE     DAY    HOLIDAY                        
 

January 2nd    Monday   New Year's Day (Observed) 
 

January 16th        Monday   Martin Luther King Jr. Day  
  

February 20th      Monday   President's Day  
 

May 29th        Monday   Memorial Day 
 
June 19th      Monday   Juneteenth 

 
July 4th     Tuesday   Independence Day  
  
September 4th     Monday   Labor Day 

  
October 9th    Monday   Columbus Day  

 
November 10th   Friday    Veteran's Day 

 
November 23rd        Thursday   Thanksgiving Day 

 
November 24th       Friday    Thanksgiving Holiday 

 
December 25th       Monday   Christmas Day 

 

December 26th     Tuesday   Christmas Holiday (Observed) 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its 

adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver copies of this resolution 
to the Chairman of the County Board, all elected and appointed County Officers, the Chief Judge of the 17th 
Judicial Circuit, the Staff Representatives of AFSCME Local 473, and the President of FOP Lodge 50. 
 

 

              Respectfully Submitted, 
                   OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE  
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 
 
 

Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    October 20, 2022 

Resolution Title:    Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with AmWINS  
                                  Group Benefits for the Administration of a Retiree Medical and RX Plan     

Board Meeting Date:    October 27, 2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                        Appropriation Amount:   N/A 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A                     Budget Impact:   N/A 

 
 
Background Information:   Winnebago County offers the retirees age 65 and over the option of 
electing a Medicare supplement and RX plan.  The retiree pays 100% of the cost of this plan, we 
currently have 22 over age 65 retirees covered under this plan. The plan with AmWINS has been 
effective since January 1, 2013.   
 
 
Recommendation:    Patrick Thompson and Human Resources have reviewed the resolution 

presented to the Board and recommend its approval.   

 
 
Contract/Agreement:  January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 
 
 
 
Legal Review:    Reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  October 27, 2022  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH AMWINS 
GROUP BENEFITS FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF A RETIREE MEDICAL AND RX PLAN  

  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago in 2022 offers a fully-insured Medicare supplement 
and RX plan to the retirees through AmWins; the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends 
continuation  of the Medicare Supplement and RX plan through Amwins; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends the continuation of the 
administrative services by AmWins; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, AmWINS Group Benefits has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County 
for the Medicare Supplement Plan and RX plan in 2023; see Resolution Exhibit A; and, 
 

Medicare Supplement Plan and Part D Drug Plan:   $515.59 per retiree per month 
 

This is a 4.92% increase from 2022 rates. 

Retirees that elect this plan pay the full cost. 
 

(We have 2 retirees in Florida that have a different rate, the Florida 2023 rate increase is between 2.20%-2.47%.) 

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with AmWINS Group Benefits for the Medicare supplement 
and RX plan for retirees for the year January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with AMWINS GROUP BENEFITS, 10 LASALLE STREET, SUITE 
3200, CHICAGO, IL 60603 for the Medicare Supplement and RX plan for Winnebago County retirees.   
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 
  



 

 

 

 

 

    Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Winnebago County 
2023 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2023 Renewal Summary: 

Winnebago County 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESENTED BY: 
Justin Goodwin 
Amwins Group Benefits, LLC 
Senior Vice President 
T 301.601.9396 
M 630.669.5500 
justin.goodwin@Amwins.com 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 

mailto:justin.goodwin@Amwins.com


Winnebago County 
2023 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

Page | 2 

 

 

 

Renewal Summary 

We are pleased to provide the 2023 Group Retiree Medical and Prescription Drug Program Renewal for Winnebago 
County. Other than the annual Medicare deductible and co-insurance adjustments for Parts A, B, and D, the plan 
designs will remain unchanged for 2023. Please review the program details enclosed in this summary. 

 
As always, Amwins Group Benefits will continue to provide our extensive administrative services including: 

Eligibility Management Program Administration 

Annual and Monthly Enrollments Billing and Collection of Premiums 

Retiree Communications Retiree Specialty Contact Center 

Customer Service Ongoing Retiree Advocacy and Support 



Winnebago County 
2023 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

Page | 3 

 

 

Monthly Fee Per Member 

 

Medical Plan: 

Underwritten by: Transamerica Life Insurance Company 
Effective January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 
 2022 2023 % Increase # of Lives 

CW Medical Plan $289.74 $304.23 5.00% 20 

FL Medical Plan1 $238.98 $238.98 0.00% 1 

FL Medical Plan2 $190.32 $190.32 
Members of FL are subject to state-mandated benefits and rates. Rates are based on zip and 
increase effective 1/1/2022.These rates are still in effect but are subject to change at any point 
1Issue age 73 Region 1 
2Issue age 65 Region 1 
 

Prescription Drug Plan: 

Underwritten by: Express Scripts Medicare 
Effective January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 

0.00% 1 
issue age. Transamerica filed a 3% renewal 
throughout the year. 

 2022 2023 % Increase # of Lives 

Rx Plan $201.68 $211.36 4.80% 22 

 

Overall Combined Program: 

 

 2022 2023 % Increase # of Lives 

CW Medical & Rx Plan $491.42 $515.59 4.92% 20 

FL Medical & Rx Plan* $440.66 $450.34 2.20% 1 

FL Medical & Rx Plan** $392.00 $401.68 2.47% 1 
Amounts are inclusive of all services performed by Amwins Group Benefits, insurance premiums and non-insurance costs. Administration 
services are provided by Amwins Group Benefits, LLC, a division of Amwins Group, Inc. Manage my Health is not included in the rates 
above. 
1Issue age 73 Region 1 
2Issue age 65 Region 1 

 
 

Manage my Health Offering: 
 

Manage my Health $10.00 Per Month 

*MMH is offered at the group level and is not voluntary per member 



Winnebago County 
2023 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

Page | 4 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Retiree Program Plan Designs 

Medical Plan: 

Underwritten by: Transamerica Life Insurance Company 
Effective January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 

 

2023 Medical Plan 

Deductible * $0.00 

Coinsurance 0% 

Total OOP Max ** $0.00 

Lifetime Benefit Max Unlimited 
* Part B Deductible (2022: $233.00) 
** Includes Calendar Year Deductible 

 

 
Prescription Drug Plan: 

Underwritten by: Express Scripts Medicare 
Effective January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 

 

2023 (30 Day Retail)** 

Calendar Year Deductible: $0 

Tier 1: Preferred Generic $5 

Tier 2: Non-Preferred Generic $10 

Tier 3: Preferred Brand $25 

Tier 4: Non-Preferred Brand $60 

Tier 5: Specialty 33% 

Coverage in the Gap* Same copay schedule as above 

OOP over $7,400 
Greater of 5% of the cost of the drug or co-pay of $4.15 for 

Generics for $10.35 for Brands 
*After your total yearly drug costs reach $4,660, you will pay the same co-payment schedule as noted above.  The co-payments  
shown already include the manufacturer discounts on brand name drugs provided by the Medicare Coverage Gap Discount Program. 
** One month (30 day) supply at an in-network preferred pharmacy; three month (90 day) supply at an in-network preferred pharmacy 
is three times the 30 day copay and mail order is two times the 30 day copay. 



Winnebago County 
2023 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

Page | 5 

 

 

 

Group Retiree Program Renewal Acceptance 2023 

Please review and confirm the 2023 subsidy and billing summary. Please return the signed electronic copy to 
Chrissy.McSwain@amwins.com 

Subsidy Summary: 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Please confirm 2023 Manage My Health Option: 

Manage My Health* 

 Add MMH for 2023 ($10 pmpm)  Do not add MMH for 2023 

*MMH is offered at the group level and is not voluntary per member 

 
Please be advised, we have reviewed the proposed plans, rates, subsidy levels, and billing modes and 
communications. We authorize Amwins to mail these renewal communications to our retirees, advising them 
of the 2023 changes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Print Name Print Title 
 
 
 

Signature Date 

2022 Subsidy 
2023 Subsidy 

(please provide if changing) 

All Members Not Available Not Available 

 
Billing Modes: 

 

2022 Billing Modes 2023 Billing Modes 

All Members List Bill List Bill 
 

mailto:Chrissy.McSwain@amwins.com


 

  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 
 
 

Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    October 20, 2022 

Resolution Title:    Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Northern 
        Illinois Health Plans (NIHP) for Third Party Administrative Services   

Board Meeting Date:    October 27, 2022 

 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?   No                             Appropriation Amount:   Approx. $1,920,000 

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 48500  43170/43173/43171   Budget Impact:   Est. $6,677.24 

 
 
Background Information:   Winnebago County contracts with NIHP for numerous services (dental, 
flex spending, COBRA, etc.), we have had an administrative services contract in place with NIHP since 
January 1, 2007.  Over the past several years the rate increases from NIHP have been minimal, for 
2023 they are requesting a $.50 increase/per employee on the dental administration rate and 
minimal increases on Flex and COBRA rates, all other services remain at the same rate as 2021.  The 
proposed rates are effective through December 31, 2024. 
 
 
Recommendation:    Patrick Thompson and Human Resources have reviewed the resolution 

presented to the Board and recommend approval.   

 
 
Contract/Agreement:  January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2024 
 
 
 
Legal Review:    Previously reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  October 27, 2022  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH NORTHERN ILLINOIS 
HEALTH PLAN (NIHP) FOR THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers employees the option of participating in 

a dental plan, flexible spending accounts and other administrative services; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends the continuation of the 
administrative services by NIHP; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, NIHP has proposed the attached rates to Winnebago County for administrative 
services in 2023; see Resolution Exhibit A; and,  

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed agreement and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with NIHP for administrative services for the year January 1, 
2023 through December 31, 2024.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
with NORTHERN ILLINOIS HEALTH PLANS, 77 W. LINCOLN BLVD., SUITE 402, FREEPORT, IL 61032 for 
administrative services. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 
 

  



 

 

    Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 
 

 

773 W. Lincoln Blvd., Suite 402 / Freeport, IL 61032 
 

August 29, 2022 
 

RE: Winnebago County, Renewal January 1, 2023 
 

NIHP wants to thank both Winnebago County and Gallagher for the opportunity to continue to provide 

administration services for Winnebago County. We look forward to continuing to build our partnership by 

providing specialized services that fulfill your expectations. I am pleased to present the administrative services 

renewal for Winnebago County effective January 1, 2023. 
 

                                ASO Fee 4/1/21 1/1/22 
Effective 
1/1/23 

 1/1/23 
Increase 

Current NIHP Services:     

Flexible Spending: Medical (including Debit Card) $6.19 $6.19 $6.25 $0.06 

Flexible Spending: Dependent Care $4.11 $4.11 $4.25 $0.14 

Flexible Spending: Annual Fee $364 $364 $375 $11 

Out-of-Network Discounts (wraps and U&C) 25% of 
savings 

25% of 
savings 

25% of 
savings 

25% of 
savings 

HIPAA Certificate Administration (per certificate) $5.20 $5.20 $5.25 $0.05 

COBRA Administration (per occurrence):     

Member Termination $26.01 $26.01 $26.00 -$0.01 
Member Enrollment $36.41 $36.41 $36.50 $0.09 

ID Cards (per card) $1.75 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 

Dental Claims Administration (PEPM) $3.00 $3.00 $3.50 $0.50 

Life Insurance Billing Administration (PPPM) $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 

Stop Loss Administration (PEPM) $1.75 $1.75 $1.75 $1.75 
Retiree Admin Fee (PEPM) $5.99 $5.99 $5.99 $5.99 

Services from other vendors:     

Cigna Dental PPO (Broader network) $2.95 $2.95 $2.95 $2.95 

 
 

Additional Information: 
 

 NIHP cannot guarantee fees from outside vendors 

 2 year guarantee (1/1/23-12/31/24) 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 

 

 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   
 

 
 
 

Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 

Committee:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

Committee Date:    October 20, 2022 

Resolution Title:    Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Blue Cross 
                                  Blue Shield for the Administration of a Self-Funded PPO and POS Insurance Plan 
Board Meeting Date:    October 27, 2022  
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                             Appropriation Amount:    

If not, explain funding source:    

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 48500     43150/43170    Budget Impact: 

 
 
Background Information:   Winnebago County contracts with BCBS for administration of two self-
insured insurance plans (a high deductible PPO plan and a Co-Pay/POS plan).  BCBS provides 
employees with quality nationwide provider coverage and service. 
 
 
Recommendation:    County Administrator, Patrick Thompson and Human Resources Director, 

Debbie Crozier, have reviewed the resolution presented to the Board and recommend approval.   

 
 
Contract/Agreement:  January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 
 
 
 
Legal Review:    Previously reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


 
 
 

County Board:  October 27, 2022  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2022 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH BLUE CROSS BLUE 
SHIELD FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF A SELF-INSURED PPO AND POS INSURANCE PLAN 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago in 2022 offers employees the option of participating in 

a self-funded Preferred Provider Organization plan (PPO) or a Point Of Service plan (POS); the 
County’s Benefit Consultant recommends continuation  of the PPO and POS plans with Blue Cross 
Blue Shield; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends the continuation of the 
administrative services by Blue Cross Blue Shield; and,   

 

 WHEREAS, Blue Cross Blue Shield has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County for 
the administration of the PPO and POS plans in 2023; see Resolution Exhibit A; and,  
 

$46.53 per employee per month 
This is a -1.4% decrease from 2022 rates. 

The access fee is increasing in 2023 from .78% to 1.49%. 
This increase is based on our enrollment dropping below 1,000 subscribers 

BCBS is also offering a one-time $60,000 credit to offset the increase in the access fee.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Blue Cross Blue Shield for the administration of the 
POS/PPO plans for the year January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF ILLINOIS, 2787 
MCFARLAND ROAD, ROCKFORD, IL 61107 for administration of the POS/PPO plans.   
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 



                         Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD  
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIMIE SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Winnebago County 
 
 
 
 
 

ASO Projection 

for the period 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 
 

2023 ASO Renewal 

 
 
 
 
 

Presented by: 

Jacob Hoffman 

 
 
 
 
 

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

 
 

A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an I ndependent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

Resolution Exhibit A 



 
 

 
       

Winnebago County 
ASO Projection 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

2023 ASO Renewal 
       

CLAIM EXPERIENCE SUMMARY 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
.... ... ..  

     

P50502 - PH3120 - PH3122 - PJ3600 

  
Current 

     

   Claims  Enrollment 
 

 
 

 
 

. 

 Month Medical Drug Total Medical  

 Jun-21    1,022  

 Jul-21 $858,001.05 $341,522.24 $1,199,523.29 1,021  

 Aug-21 $1,333,590.77 $249,126.49 $1,582,717.26 1,021  

 Sep-21 $1,021,791.65 $162,818.43 $1,184,610.08 1,014  

 Oct-21 $820,180.41 $297,664.52 $1,117,844.93 1,010  

 Nov-21 $813,729.59 $351,721.03 $1,165,450.62 1,006  

 Dec-21 $1,088,787.95 $298,541.16 $1,387,329.11 994  

 Jan-22 $747,288.28 $211,816.94 $959,105.22 1,003  

 Feb-22 $932,495.00 $239,474.24 $1,171,969.24 1,004  

 Mar-22 $1,015,316.04 $259,188.86 $1,274,504.90 1,003  

 Apr-22 $871,136.88 $298,302.22 $1,169,439.10 994  

 May-22 $792,094.35 $304,994.19 $1,097,088.54 984  

 Jun-22 $945,248.08 $294,351.29 $1,239,599.37   

 Total $11,239,660.05 $3,309,521.61 $14,549,181.66 12,076  

 Cost PCPM $930.74 $274.06 $1,204.80   

 Facility Network Savings   $10,728,394.07   

Physician and BlueCard Network Savings   $6,369,927.99   

  
Prior 

     

   Claims  Enrollment 
 

 

 
 

 
. 

 Month Medical Drug Total Medical  

 Jun-20    929  

 Jul-20 $855,048.25 $147.74 $855,195.99 933  

 Aug-20 $975,740.96 $-147.74 $975,593.22 926  

 Sep-20 $788,601.15 $0.00 $788,601.15 920  

 Oct-20 $801,849.32 $907.76 $802,757.08 922  

 Nov-20 $795,799.79 $864.86 $796,664.65 932  

 Dec-20 $917,577.75 $876.89 $918,454.64 926  

 Jan-21 $868,594.53 $94,593.67 $963,188.20 1,001  

 Feb-21 $962,151.54 $194,590.03 $1,156,741.57 1,001  

 Mar-21 $1,170,758.01 $198,055.41 $1,368,813.42 1,009  

 Apr-21 $848,389.39 $311,049.40 $1,159,438.79 1,016  

 May-21 $896,153.22 $213,570.86 $1,109,724.08 1,017  

 Jun-21 $1,189,744.92 $179,900.05 $1,369,644.97   

 Total $11,070,408.83 $1,194,408.93 $12,264,817.76 11,532  

 Cost PCPM $959.97 $103.57 $1,063.55   

 Facility Network Savings   $11,741,148.87   

 Physician and BlueCard Network Savings   $5,711,977.48   

 

 
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 
 
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated 

companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

 

A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 



 
 
 
 

 

Winnebago County 
ASO Projection 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

2023 ASO Renewal 

 
CLAIM PROJECTION 

 

 

 

. . . . . . . 

        

P50502 - PH3120 - PH3122 - PJ3600  MEDICAL DRUG TOTAL 
 Prior Current Prior Current Prior Current 
 07/20-06/21 07/21-06/22 07/20-06/21 07/21-06/22 07/20-06/21 07/21-06/22 

Net Paid Claims $11,070,409 $11,239,660 $1,194,409 $3,309,522 $12,264,818 $14,549,182 

Remove Large Claims $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Number of Large Claims 0 0   0 0 

Adjusted Net Paid Claims $11,070,409 $11,239,660 $1,194,409 $3,309,522 $12,264,818 $14,549,182 

Exposures 11,532 12,076 5,210 12,076 11,532 12,076 

Average Claim Value (ACV) Per Contract Per Month (PCPM) $959.97 $930.74 $229.25 $274.06 $1,189.22 $1,204.80 

Annual Trend Rate * 4.5% 3.4% 11.2% 11.1%   

Trend Months (midpoint method) 30.0 18.0 30.0 18.0   

Trend Factor 11.6% 5.1% 30.4% 17.1%   

Trended ACV PCPM $1,071.33 $978.21 $298.94 $320.92 $1,370.27 $1,299.13 

Historical Plan Change Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%   

Enrollment Shift Adjustment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%   

Demographic Adjustment 1.40% 1.94% 1.16% 1.02%   

Adjusted ACV PCPM $1,086.33 $997.19 $302.41 $324.19 $1,388.74 $1,321.38 

Non-Pooled Large Claims PCPM $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Projected ACV PCPM by Period $1,086.33 $997.19 $302.41 $324.19 $1,388.74 $1,321.38 

Experience Period Weighting 1% 99% 1% 99% 1% 99% 

 

Blended Experience ACV PCPM 

  

$998.08 

  

$323.97 

  

$1,322.05 

Manual ACV PCPM $1,092.30 $290.77 $1,383.07 

Credibility 100% 100%  

Total Projected ACV PCPM $998.08 $323.97 $1,322.05 

Projected Plan Change Adjustment 0.00% 0.00%  

Total Projected ACV PCPM with Adjustments $998.08 $323.97 $1,322.05 

Stop Loss Alternate Deductible Adjustment 1.0000 1.0000  

Adjusted Projected ACV PCPM $998.08 $323.97 $1,322.05 

Projected Enrollment 985 985 985 

Number of Months in Policy Period 12 12 12 

Projected Net Paid Claims $11,797,305 $3,829,325 $15,626,630 

Projected Facility Network Savings  ($11,382,579)    ($11,382,579) 

Projected Physician Savings ($4,878,249) ($4,878,249) 

Total Projected Savings ($16,260,828) ($16,260,828) 

Projected Blue Card Network Savings ($1,778,248) ($1,778,248) 

Total Projected Network Savings ($18,039,076) ($18,039,076) 

Projected Network Savings % of Total Gross Medical Clms (60.5%) (53.6%) 

Projected Gross Paid Claims $29,836,381 $33,665,706 

 
 

 
*The Annual Trend Rate includes an adjustment for any unusual claim impact related to the pandemic event that is not expected to continue into the projection period. 

For example, the impact to the Annual Medical Trend Rate for a 12-month experience period including pandemic months could be approximately between 2% and 5%. 

The impact can vary materially from the stated ranges if the number of experience months is fewer than 12. 

 
 
 
 

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated 

companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

 

A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 



 
 
 

 

Winnebago County 
ASO Projection 

for the period 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

2023 ASO Renewal 

 
TOTAL PROJECTED COST BY PRODUCT 

RENEWAL PPO 
  

 Fee Total Cost 

Projected Net Paid Claims  $15,626,630 

Illinois Facility Access Fee(% of ADPs) 1.49% $169,600 

Administration Fee ** $48.37 $571,733 

Third-Party Stop Loss Carrier Fee $0.50 $5,910 

Prescription Drug Rebate Credit * ($107.29) ($1,268,168) 

Medical Rebate Credit ($2.50) ($29,550) 

Total Projected Cost 
 

$15,076,155 

Change in Reserves 
 

$35,897 

 

*This quote assumes Prime Therapeutics (PBM) Balanced drug list and Traditional Select network. 

** Administration Fee does not include Advanced Payment Review (APR) services charged at 25% of claims savings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 

 
Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated 

companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 



 
 
 

 

Winnebago County 
ASO Projection 

for the period 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

2023 ASO Renewal 

 
FEE COMPARISON (BY PRODUCT) 

 

 

 

. . . . . . 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 *Administration Fee does not include Advanced Payment Review (APR) services charged at 25% of claims savings. 

  

  

  

  

 
 
 
 

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 
 
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated 

companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an I ndependent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

        

Mature PPO   

 Current Renewal Change   

Projected Enrollment 1,020 985 -3.4%   

Single  468   

Family  517   

     

Illinois Access Fee 0.78% 1.49% 91.0%  

    

Administration Fee* $47.19 $46.53 Revised  

Prescription Drug Rebate Credit ($96.30) ($107.29) 11.4%  

Medical Rebate Credit ($2.50) ($2.50) 0.0%  

Third-Party Stop Loss Carrier Fee $0.50 $0.50 0.0%  

Net Administration Fee PCPM ($51.11) ($60.92) 19.2%  

     

Total Fixed Costs PCPM ($51.11) ($60.92) 19.2%  

     

Projected Average Claim Value PCPM $1,298.66 $1,336.40 2.9%  

     

Total Projected Costs PCPM $1,247.55 $1,275.48 2.2%  

     

 



 
 
 
 
 

Winnebago County 
ASO Projection 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

2023 ASO Renewal 
 

CONDITIONS AND CAVEATS 

 
Notwithstanding anything in the renewal or proposal to the contrary, BCBSIL reserves the right to revise or withdraw any term herein or to change our charge for the cost of coverage (premium, 

fees or other amounts) at any time before or during the contract period if any local, state or federal legislation, regulation, rule or guidance (or amendment or clarification thereto) is enacted 

or becomes effective/implemented, which would require BCBSIL to pay, submit or forward, on its own behalf or on the Employer Group's behalf, any additional tax, surcharge, fee, or other 

amount (all of which may be estimated, allocated or pro-rated amounts). BCBSIL also reserves the right to change the administrative fees it charges the Employer Group at any time before or during 

the contract period to the extent that any local, state or federal legislation, regulation, rule or guidance (or amendments or clarifications thereto) is enacted or becomes effective/implemented 

which results in increased projected claim costs or an increase to BCBSIL's expenses or cost of plan administration. 

 
Unless otherwise stated, this renewal offer is made on the assumption the benefit program is for a plan that is not considered a "grandfathered health plans" as defined under the 

Affordable Care Act and related regulations. If you have questions about grandfathered health plans, please consult your legal counsel. 
 

This renewal is being provided for the period indicated above. 

This renewal offer expires as of the effective date indicated above. 

This renewal offer assumes HCSC will remain the exclusive carrier for Medical and Rx coverage. 

 
Upon inquiry from employer groups, BCBS will provide information to the employer group regarding commissions and other compensation paid 

to the employer's agent by BCBS in connection with the employer's policy or contract with BCBS. 

 
HCSC reserves the right to adjust the Aggregate Claim Liability if one or more of the following occurs within the coverage period: 

- the Account's composition changes (i.e. demographics) 

- the Account's number of covered employees increases or decreases by more than 10% 

- the Account's benefit program changes 

 
HCSC's pharmacy benefit manager, PRIME Therapeutics (PBM), holds rebate contracts with pharmaceutical manufacturers. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, HCSC may, in some 

circumstances, provide the Employer with a Rebate Credit, but such Rebate Credit may not equal the entire amount of the rebates provided to HCSC by the PBM. 

 
Employers that do not use Prime Therapeutics as their pharmacy benefit manager are NOT eligible for a Rebate Credit under the pharmacy benefit. 

The PEPM Medical Rebate Credit is subject to change as HCSC will review the PEPM credit offer for each subsequent renewal. 

The Administrative charge includes a network access fee for employees residing in HCSC service areas (IL, MT, OK, NM, TX). Claims incurred outside HCSC service 

areas through the BlueCard program may be assessed a BlueCard access fee of no more than 3.62% of the discount applied, not to exceed $2,000 per claim. An estimate 

of this access fee is included in our projected claim figures. 

 
This quote is contingent upon the account signing new contract documents in a timely manner. If not signed, then HCSC may withdraw and/or revise the quote. 

Pharmacy Rebate Credit includes estimate of rebates for all categories of drugs, including specialty drugs, based on our book of business. 

If the prescription drug program is not administered by Prime today but is awarded the administration of the prescription drug program, the medical claim cost will be reduced due 

to the integration of the medical and prescription drug program. 

 
We reserve the right to revise or withdraw our offer if, at any time during the projected coverage period: 

- The actual number of enrolled contracts (in total, by product, or by benefit plan), the Single/Family mix, or the Medicare/Non-Medicare mix varies by +/- 10% from our projections. 

- The information upon which our projections were based (benefit levels, census/demographics, commissions, etc.) becomes outdated or inaccurate. 

 
Wellbeing Management (Health Management & Advocacy program) is included in the quoted administration fee. 

 
Projected Net Paid Claims for non-HMO Medical coverages on these exhibits include Estimated Value Based Care Payments and Savings. 

Value Based Care payments apply to Stop Loss Coverage. 

BCBSIL retains the right to recoup monetary credits provided, any remaining implementation costs, shared savings or PG incentive fees from the plan sponsor in the event of early termination 

of the proposed coverage or contract, either in its entirety or with respect to certain custom services or programs included in this offer. 

 

 
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 
 
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated 

companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

 

 
A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an I ndependent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 



 
 
 

 

Winnebago County 
ASO Projection 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

2023 ASO Renewal 
 

CONDITIONS AND CAVEATS 
 

If a third party stop loss carrier is selected, a Third-Party Stop Loss Carrier fee will apply. 

 
Offer is contingent upon proposed Wellbeing Management package design. Any modifications to the proposed package 

will impact the Wellbeing Management fee and Administrative Fee. 

 
Administration Fee assumes Post Payment (Monthly Check) claim funding. 

 
This quote assumes Prime Therapeutics (PBM) Balanced drug list and Traditional Select network. 

 
Quote includes Advanced Payment Review (APR) program under APR program savings model. All claim savings realized through the APR program are passed through to the customer 

on the claim invoice, and HCSC will charge back 25% of the claim savings on the monthly administrative invoice. 

 

 
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 
 
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated 

companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 



 
 

 

 

Winnebago County 
ASO Projection 

for the period 

January 1, 2023 - December 31, 2023 

2023 ASO Renewal 
 

Wellbeing Management Detail 

 
PH3120 PH3122 PJ3600 Total 

Projected Enrollment 866 19 100 985 

 
WBM Package Included in Administration Fee Enable BH Enable BH Enable BH  

Foundational Package Components     

Foundational Package Components     

Total Foundational and Configurable $4.95 $4.95 $4.95 $4.95 

 
Total WBM Fee Included in Administration Fee $4.95 $4.95 $4.95 $4.95 

 
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 

 
 
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL 

Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated 

companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 

an I ndependent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association 



   COUNTY BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 27, 2022 

   
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2022 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

SPONSORED BY: KEITH MCDONALD AND JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH THE RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) has owned and operated River 
Bluff Nursing Home since 1883, which provides a continuum of intermediate and skilled nursing 
services for residents of all incomes; and  

WHEREAS, the County has identified the need for River Bluff Nursing Home to have 
more oversight over its business operations and create strategic goals in becoming economically 
viable and have long term success; and  

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee and County Board wishes to 
establish a Board of Directors for River Bluff Nursing Home in order to accomplish this need for 
River Bluff Nursing Home. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, approves the establishment of a River Bluff Nursing Home Board of 
Directors.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the River Bluff Nursing Home Board of Directors 
shall be comprised of nine (9) members, including one (1) County Board member, and shall be 
appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with the advice and consent of the 
Winnebago County Board.  All positions shall receive no compensation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, members of the River Bluff Nursing Home Board of 
Directors shall be representative of the community and with specific expertise in the areas of 
health care, finance/banking, accounting, social services, human resources and marketing. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each Board member shall hold office for a term of 
(4) years. Each Board member, including a Board member appointed to fill a vacancy, shall hold 
office until expiration of the term for which appointed or until a successor has been appointed 
and qualified. Board members may be reappointed to successive terms, provided no Board 
member may serve for more than three (3) consecutive (4) year terms. 



   COUNTY BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 27, 2022 

   
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any Board Member may resign at any time, either 

by oral tender of resignation at any meeting of the Board of Directors or by giving written notice 
thereof to the Chair of the County Board. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified 
therefore and, unless otherwise specified with respect thereto, the acceptance of such resignation 
shall not be necessary to make it effective.  A Board Member may be removed, with or without 
cause, by action of at least fourteen (14) members of the County Board at the meeting at which 
such action is being considered. Any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors shall be filled 
by the County Board Chair, with the advice and consent of the County Board. A Board member 
appointed to fill a vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors shall serve for the unexpired term 
of his or her predecessor in the office. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that once the River Bluff Nursing Home Board of 
Directors have been appointed by the County Board Chairman and approved by the County 
Board, that the Board of Directors shall meet and organize its leadership positions and 
committees and then develop by-laws for its organization and submit the by-laws to the County 
Board for approval. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Administrator of River Bluff Nursing Home and 
the County Administrator.  

 
         Respectfully submitted, 

        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 

 
________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman           John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby               Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________           ____________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd          Dorothy Redd 



   COUNTY BOARD MEETING OCTOBER 27, 2022 

   
 
__________________________________        _____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  

of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of ___________________, 2022. 
 

                      ____________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 

County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 









































 

Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   Corrections Bureau and Purchasing Department  
Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:            October 19, 2022 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Awarding New Jail Management Software 
County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 
Board Meeting Date:     October 27, 2022 
    
 

Background Information:   
The Sheriff’s Department Corrections Bureau, since 2007, has utilized Motorola OffenderTrak Software as 
their Jail Management System (JMS) in order to comply with record and facility management standards.  
Motorola informed Correction’s that they will no longer be serving OffenderTrak and the program will be 
discontinued as of January 1, 2023.   
 
The Sheriff’s Department Correction’s Bureau and the Information Technology Department started and 
completed a broad search for an OffenderTrak replacement.  After review of three JMS software demos, 
Black Creek Integrated Systems Corp. was the only system adequate in meeting the requirements that are 
needed to replace the OffenderTrak program.  The new program also offers additional jail services that 
have not been part of the outdated OffenderTrak program. 
 
After selecting the best software program, the Purchasing Department was engaged and negotiated an 
additional $120,000 discount off the entire project.   
 
The total amount for the project is $596,850 plus an additional $30,000 for hardware.  The amount of 
$200,000 is coming from the PSST fund (ORG 40115 - OBJ 43167) and the remaining dollar amount will 
come out of the Sheriff’s commissary account.   
 
Recommendation:   
The Corrections Bureau Captain and the Chief Information Officer recommend awarding an agreement to 
Black Creek Integrated Systems Corp. for SallyPort© Jail Management System software.  SallyPort© Jail 
Management System software is a state-specific JMS designed to meet the state and federal requirements 
for each user agency. 
 
Legal Review:  
 SAO Reviewed and all their recommendations have been included in the final agreement 
 
Follow-Up:   
Purchasing staff will make sure all agreements are executed and filed. Corrections and DoIT staff will work 
closely with Black Creek to implement the new jail management system. 



     County Board Meeting: October 27, 2022 
  
  

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
Sponsored by:  Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
 

Resolution Awarding Jail Management Software 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department Correction’s Bureau requires the use 
of Jail Management Software (JMS) in order to comply with Illinois Complied Statue 20 ILCS 2630/2.1 
and Illinois Administrative Code Title 20, Section 701.30-701.40; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department Correction’s Bureau has been using 

Motorola OffenderTrak as its existing jail records management system since 2007; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, Motorola has stopped functional development of the existing jail records 
management system--OffenderTrak; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the scope of work, Resolution Exhibit A, for the aforementioned 
service and recommends awarding agreement for SallyPort© Jail Management System Software as 
follows: 
 

BLACK CREEK INTEGRATED SYSTEMS CORP. 
P.O. BOX 101747  
IRONDALE, ALABAMA 35210 
      

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the County Board Chairman is authorized to issue, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, an 
agreement, similar in language to Resolution Exhibit B, with BLACK CREEK INTEGRATED SYSTEMS CORP., 
P.O. BOX 101747, IRONDALE, ALABAMA  35210.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Captain of the Corrections Bureau, Chief Information 
Officer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully submitted, 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BURT GERL, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BURT GERL, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

                                                                 KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

BRAD LINDMARK 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



PC22043.03.docx

PROPOSAL / SCOPE OF WORK 

Black Creek Integrated Systems Corp. 
P.O. Box 101747 
Irondale, AL  35210 
Phone:  205-949-9900 

AGENCY: Winnebago County, Illinois BCIS QUOTE NO.: PC22043.03 

ATTENTION: Captain Robert Lukowski QUOTED BY: THL/dhk 

ADDRESS: 650 West State Street DATE: October 6, 2022 

Rockford, IL 61102 

PHONE: (815) 319- 6749

EMAIL: lukowskir@wcso-il.us 

This Scope of Work details Black Creek’s response to a request from Winnebago Co., IL, for a proposal to implement 
Black Creek’s SallyPort©IL Jail Management System for the Agency. This proposal supersedes all proposals 
previously issued by Black Creek for this project. 

1.0 Deliverables 

1.01 Application Software & Interfaces 

1.01.01 SallyPort©IL 4.0 Booking and Inmate Management Software: includes the following 
modules: Booking with digital mug shot image capture and display capability, 
Demographics, Video Lineup, Arrest/Charge/Release, Inmate Property, Classification, 
Medical, Inmate Fund, Inmate Contacts/Visitation, Threat Group, Billing and Shift Log. For 
installation on Customer’s server. Includes 90 days of telephone support from date of 
installation. 

1.01.02 30 ea. Full Access SallyPort©IL User License: for installation on networked workstations 
or supported mobile devices. 

1.01.03 Unlimited SallyPort©IL User Read-Only License: for installation on networked 
workstations or supported mobile devices.  Allows only viewing of inmate data and report 
generation. 

1.01.04 Inmate Scheduling Module: Allows an Agency to schedule, track, and manage all inmate 
activities such as Programs, Hearings, Transports, etc. Information can be displayed in 
calendar format or as a printable report. 

1.01.05 V.I.N.E. Interface: provides automated data communications between SallyPort©IL and
Appriss V.I.N.E. system. 

1.01.06 Livescan Interface: provides two-way (bidirectional), automated data exchange between 
SallyPort©IL and the Livescan application. Compatible with Biometrix4All, Comnetix, L1, 
Idemia, DataWorks, ID Networks, Mentalix, Morphotrust. 

1.01.07 Active Directory Interface: Allows secure login using Active Directory credentials. 

1.01.08 Telephone System PIN Interface: passes inmate personal identification number to inmate 
phone system on inmate booking and passes deactivation information on inmate release. 
Compatible with Securus, GTL, NCIC, Paytel. 

1.01.09 In Custody Inmate Data Exchange/View: provides in-custody inmate information between 
SallyPort©IL and other entities requesting data for in-custody inmates, such as for display 
on an agency's public facing website or other use. Used to harvest data for Full Court 
Enterprise data exchange. 

1.01.10 Commissary Booking Interface: Interface between Commissary application and 
SallyPort©IL to activate/deactivate an inmate account upon booking/release; does not 
include debits from/credits to inmate fund accounts. Compatible with Keefe, Swanson, 
Trinity, Aramark. Refer to 4.01.04 and 4.01.05. 

1.01.11 CorEMR Electronic Medical Records Interface: unidirectional export of standard inmate 
information upon bookings, releases, and movements. Refer to 4.01.04 and 4.01.05. 

EXHIBIT A RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



BCIS Proposal PC22043.03 
October 6, 2022 
Page 2 of 8 
 

  PC22043.03.docx 

1.01.12 NCIC (CommSys Application) Interface: ConnectCIC State Interface middleware product 
for interface with IL LEADS message switch for state and local transactions; includes 
ConnectCIC Basic Inquiry Package with Real-time Data Mining, Computerized Criminal 
History (CCH) Inquiry, and Wanted/Missing Persons (WMP-I) Inquiry. 

1.01.13 Watch Tour Manager® Application Plug-In for SallyPort©IL: Allows the configuration and 
electronic tracking and recording of watch tours. Data is collected using a Black Creek-
approved mobile device (check with Black Creek for a list of compatible devices) that 
incorporates an NFC reader, an integral camera, a QWERTY keyboard, and Wi-Fi 
connectivity; watch tour data is collected by scanning NFC tags. Notes or ad hoc entries 
can be attached to watch tour entries using the integral keyboard. Images and full-motion 
video entries can also be attached using the integral camera. Watch Tour Manager® 
allows highly flexible configuration of watch tours by locations and schedules. Real-time 
indication of watch tour progress and alarm conditions can be displayed when utilized in 
conjunction with a wireless LAN. Includes search and reporting utilities. Data can be 
downloaded to the storage server via one of the following methods: 
(1) In real time when utilizing a wireless LAN installed throughout the facility, or  
(2) on a batch basis when in range of a Wireless Access Point(s) installed in a central 
location in the facility. 

1.01.14 50 ea. Watch Tour Manager®/Electronic Shift Log Mobile Client Access License: Provides 
connection to the Watch Tour Manager® application for data collection devices. Mobile 
devices may not share licenses; each mobile device in use must have its own individual 
license in order to be registered in the system. A list of compatible mobile devices will be 
provided upon request. 

1.01.15 Mobile Device Server License: required for communication between SallyPort©IL, Watch 
Tour Manager®, Shift Log, and mobile devices or other network systems; supports up to 
(50) concurrent mobile device connections. Software to be installed on server provided by 
Customer.   

1.01.16 RMS Interface (two-way): Provides a bidirectional automated data exchange between the 
Records Management System and SallyPort©IL; SallyPort©IL will interface with the RMS 
Application, thus allowing SallyPort©IL users the option to create new inmate booking 
records populated with the RMS arrest data without duplicate manual data entry. 
Additionally, SallyPort©IL will provide mutually agreed upon inmate data to the Records 
Management System to eliminate dual entry. Compatible with: Hexagon (Intergraph), 
MARK43, CoHero, ARMS. [NOTE: At the time of this quotation, Black Creek has provided 
it’s standard bidirectional (2-way) RMS interface. If upon receipt of the RMS interface 
specification document, there are additional functionality requirements not addressed, this 
interface may require revision at additional expense to the Agency.] 

1.01.17 Fingerprint Plug-in: allows the capture and storage of inmate fingerprint templates at intake 
for use in confirming positive identification upon release and subsequent bookings. 
Requires HU20 Fingerprint Scanner. 

1.01.18 Barcoding Plug-in: allows Agency to create Agency-specific QR codes for use in 
SallyPort©IL and Electronic Shift Log; requires compatible handheld mobile device with 
QR code scanning capabilities. A list of compatible mobile devices will be provided upon 
request. 

1.01.19 Custom Interface: Programming services to provide custom interface(s) to DigiTicket and 
the Court Management System (specifics to be determined). [NOTE: At the time of this 
quotation, Black Creek has provided the quote based on preliminary information provided 
by the Agency. If upon receipt of the interface specification document(s), there are 
additional functionality requirements not addressed, this interface may require revision at 
additional expense to the Agency.] 

  



BCIS Proposal PC22043.03 
October 6, 2022 
Page 3 of 8 
 

  PC22043.03.docx 

1.02 Hardware 

1.02.01 6 ea. T-LBK462-HSB Signature Capture Pad: heavy-duty signature capture pad for use in 
recording and storing electronic signatures on any form in SallyPort©IL where an inmate 
or officer signature is required; includes 1"x5" LCD, tempered glass signing surface. USB-
connected. 

1.02.02 6 ea. HU20 Fingerprint Scanner: forensic-quality fingerprint capture device. Delivers 
accurate and reliable results for identification and verification. Scanner includes 72" USB 
cable for connection to networked SallyPort©IL computer workstation; requires Fingerprint 
Interface. 

1.02.03 25 ea. Location NFC Tag Assembly: ruggedized, encapsulated Bluetooth low-energy 
beacon; utilizes a secure algorithm to prevent duplication. One per tour requirement. 

1.02.04 300 ea. Watch Tour NFC Tag Assembly: ruggedized, encapsulated Bluetooth low-energy 
beacon; utilizes a secure algorithm to prevent duplication. 

1.02.05 Freight Charges: ground transportation, best way. 

1.03 Ancillary Services 

1.03.01 3 ea. Discovery Days: Onsite meeting days to coordinate with agency staff to review 
procedures and requirements of the project; includes eight (8) hours/day of discovery 
services by a qualified representative conducted during normal business hours, Monday-
Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  

1.03.02 3 ea. Installation/Commissioning Days: Remote services of certified electronic technician 
for assistance in system installation and/or setup; includes eight (8) hours/day of 
installation services conducted during normal business hours, Monday-Friday, 9:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m. CST. 

1.03.03 3 ea. Training Days: Onsite training in use of system utilizing a Train-the-Trainer format; 
includes eight (8) hours/day of training conducted during normal business hours, Monday-
Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  

1.03.04 3 ea. Go-Live Support Days: Onsite Go-Live support; includes eight (8) hours/day of onsite 
technical support by a qualified representative conducted during normal business hours, 
Monday-Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  

1.03.05 Data Conversion  

1.03.05.01 Enhanced Data Conversion in accordance with Attachment A. 

1.03.05.02 Data that cannot be mapped to equivalent fields in SallyPort©IL will be 
entered in a Comments field on the Inmate’s record.  

1.03.05.03 All data conversion presumes existing data can be provided in an industry-
standard format. 

1.03.05.04 Conversion of data fields beyond those listed in the Enhanced Data 
Conversion column presented in Attachment A can be performed at 
additional cost; fields for conversion can be finalized during contract 
negotiation. 

1.03.06 Project Management performed by Black Creek’s designated Project Manager. 

1.03.07 Travel Costs: includes airfare, travel days, hotel, rental car, and meals. 

2.0 Customer and Black Creek Roles and Responsibilities 

 2.01 Owner Responsibilities 

2.01.01 Furnish, install, and maintain SallyPort©IL server hardware, operating system, and MS 
SQL Server software/licenses for database(s); database(s) can be maintained on 
separate physical servers or on a single, appropriately sized, virtualized physical server. 
Refer to Attachment B for requirements. 



BCIS Proposal PC22043.03 
October 6, 2022 
Page 4 of 8 
 

  PC22043.03.docx 

2.01.02 Furnish, install, and maintain the facility network; a minimum gigabit network is 
recommended, and the network must have consistent, reliable bandwidth. 

2.01.03 Furnish, install, and maintain networked client workstations, including operating system, 
capable of accessing the Agency’s Intranet. 

2.01.04 Maintain updates to the servers such as virus protection and/or Windows® OS updates.  

2.01.05 Provide Black Creek access to existing JMS data or provide a backup file of existing JMS 
data for data conversion purposes. 

2.01.05 Provide compatible mobile tablet devices and associated kiosk application licenses or 
approved alternative kiosk software. 

2.01.06 Furnish, install, and maintain compatible wireless access points. 

2.01.07 Furnish, install, and maintain the mobile device gateway server hardware and operating 
system. 

2.01.06 System backups. (SallyPort©IL has a daily schedule task that creates a backup file; 
however, the Customer will need to ensure this file, along with the entire Install Directory, 
is backed up on a regular basis.) 

2.01.07 Provide SallyPort©IL server with network access to third party vendors such as Swanson, 
Securus, etc., to facilitate required interfaces. 

2.01.08 Provide remote access to Black Creek to SallyPort©IL server for remote installation, 
diagnostic, and support purposes. 

2.01.09 Provide interface specification documents for all interfaces required. 

 2.02 Black Creek Responsibilities 

2.02.01 Provide all Deliverables. 

2.02.02 Install application software and interfaces. 

2.02.03 Provide software maintenance and support during initial 90-day warranty period and 
during an active annual support plan period thereafter. 

3.0 Acceptance Criteria 

3.01 The Customer shall provide written notification of system acceptance to Black Creek upon 
completion of 30-day system acceptance testing period beginning on the software Go-Live Date. 

4.0 Clarifications and Exclusions 

4.01 Clarifications 

4.01.01 Prices quoted F.O.B. Factory, freight prepaid & included. 

4.01.02 Pricing valid for 90 calendar days from date of proposal. 

4.01.03 Pricing does not include charges from other vendors (e.g., Keefe, Central Square, etc.) 
that may be incurred to implement quoted interfaces. 

4.01.04 Black Creek has provided its standard interface for each specified system/application. 
Interface pricing is subject to revision after receipt of an interface specification document 
for each interface; if additional functionality requirements are discovered upon receipt of 
the interface specification document(s), interface(s) may require revision at additional 
expense to the Customer. Interface pricing can be finalized during contract negotiation, or 
via change order to the contract if nonconformity is noted during Discovery. 

4.01.05 Proposal assumes quoted interfaces conform to industry standard formats and that the 
vendor/agency is willing to share data with Black Creek.  

  



BCIS Proposal PC22043.03 
October 6, 2022 
Page 5 of 8 
 

  PC22043.03.docx 

4.02 Exclusions 

4.02.01 Sales Tax. 

4.02.02 Liquidated Damages. 

4.02.03 Retainage. 

4.02.04 Performance and payment bonds (may be provided at 1.5% of contract amount). 

4.02.05 Any equipment or service not previously described in this scope of work. 

5.0 Pricing Summary 

5.01 Application Software & Interfaces $483,365.00 

5.0 Hardware   $8,216.00 

5.03 Ancillary Services $211,744.00 

5.04 PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL $703,225.00 

5.05 First-in-State Discount (15%) DEDUCT (105,484.00) 

5.06 FINAL PROPOSAL TOTAL  $596,850.00 

6.0 Annual Support 

6.01 Provide Software Support in accordance with SallyPort©IL Annual Support Plan (refer to Attachment 
C). 

6.02 Annual Support Plan pricing is for 12-month period. Actual cost will be prorated from support plan 
inception date to 12/31. 

6.03 Annual Support Year 1 Post-warranty (full year): $120,817.00 

7.0 Terms of Payment 

7.01 Per mutually agreed upon Schedule of Values. 

8.0 Delivery 

8.01 Per mutually agreed upon project schedule. 

Best regards, 
BLACK CREEK INTEGRATED SYSTEMS CORP. 
 
 
 
Thom Lanphear 
General Sales Manager 
tlanphear@blackcreekisc.com 
  

mailto:tlanphear@blackcreekisc.com


BCIS Proposal PC22043.03 
October 6, 2022 
Page 6 of 8 
 

  PC22043.03.docx 

ATTACHMENT A: DATA CONVERSION 

  



BCIS Proposal PC22043.03 
October 6, 2022 
Page 7 of 8 
 

  PC22043.03.docx 

ATTACHMENT B: HARDWARE SPECIFICATIONS 

 

JMS SERVER 

Parameter Minimum Optimal 

Operating System Windows® Server 2016 Standard Windows® Server 2019 Standard 

Database Microsoft SQL Server 2019 Microsoft SQL Server 2019 

Web Server IIS 7.5 or Higher IIS 7.5 or Higher 

Processor 4 cores, 2.2GHz 6 cores, 2.2GHz or higher 

Memory 32GB DDR4  64GB DDR4  

Storage 512GB NVMe SSD 1TB NVMe SSD 

Display  1920x1080  1920x1080 

Network 200mbps 300mbps or Higher 

Remote Access LogMeIn Client Unattended 

Internet Ports SSL Port 443 SSL Port 443 

Web Browser Google Chrome Google Chrome 

   
DESKTOP CLIENT 

Parameter Minimum Optimal 

Web Browser Google Chrome Google Chrome 

Processor 4 Cores 2.4GHz 4 Cores 2.8GHz or Higher 

RAM DDR4 8GBs  DDR4 16GBs  

Storage 128GB SSD 128GB SSD 

Operating System Windows® 10 Professional Windows® 10 Professional 

Display Resolution 1920x1080 1920x1080 

Network 200mbps 300mbps or Higher 

 
 

 
MOBILE/TABLET CLIENT 

Parameter Minimum Optimal 

Operating System Android 10 Android 11.0 or higher 

If applicable> Samsung KNOX Enabled Enabled 

Factory Reset Disabled Disabled 

Multi Window Disabled Disabled 

S Voice Disabled Disabled 

Air View Mode Disabled Disabled 

Air Command Mode Disabled Disabled 

Smart Clip Mode Disabled Disabled 

 

The web app is accessible using any currently supported web browser: 

• Chrome (54.0.2841.87 or higher) 

• Edge (38.14393 or higher) 

• Safari (10.0.1 or higher) 

• Opera (41 or higher) 

• Firefox (49.0.2 or higher) 

An SSL certificate secures traffic between the user’s browser and the JMS server. 
  



BCIS Proposal PC22043.03 
October 6, 2022 
Page 8 of 8 
 

  PC22043.03.docx 

ATTACHMENT C: SallyPort©IL ANNUAL SUPPORT PLAN DESCRIPTION 

 

Black Creek’s SallyPort©IL Unlimited Support Plan begins upon system Go-Live. The SallyPort©IL Unlimited 
Support Plan is an enhanced plan with no limits on the amount of telephone contact time or Internet support from 
Black Creek technical support personnel. It was designed for agencies who depend on a quick response time when 
faced with questions concerning their software and its operation and who wish to budget a single annual amount for 
that support. This comprehensive plan includes the following features:  
 

• Unlimited hours of telephone assistance from persons skilled in the use and support of SallyPort©IL.  

• One (1) hour response time to inquiries: Black Creek will make every attempt to contact you within one (1) 
hour of receipt of an inquiry during normal business hours (defined below).  

• Software updates: Black Creek will provide updates to the software as they are issued during the life of the 
Plan.  

• E-mail notification of software notices and updates.  

• Remote software support: A Black Creek Technical Support Representative will “log on” to your system from 
Black Creek’s facility in Irondale, al, to assist in problem resolution.  

• Membership in Black Creek’s Software Users’ Group.  

 
Plan pricing assumes services will be requested and provided during Black Creek’s normal business hours, Monday 
through Friday, between 8:00 a.m.–5:00 p.m. CST; calls received outside these hours are billable at the Extended 
Services rates in effect at the time of service. For calls received outside normal business hours and during weekends 
and holidays, service provided is billed at the Extended Service rates in effect at that time. Plan terms are effective 
for the period January 1st to December 31st, unless otherwise negotiated.  
 
In order to accurately and precisely identify service requests, Black Creek will provide the Owner with “Problem 
Report” forms requiring detailed descriptions of each suspected problem. This document will serve as the instrument 
that identifies and describes the problem and gives the technician the information necessary to diagnose and correct 
the problem. Black Creek has found that accurate reporting minimizes miscommunication and therefore greatly 
decreases the problem resolution time. Once the problem is identified, Black Creek will troubleshoot and make 
software corrections via a remote connection to the system. Black Creek's ability to troubleshoot and make software 
corrections via this remote connection also greatly reduces the amount of time spent correcting any problems. 
 
There are Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3 support staff for SallyPort©IL.  

• Tier 1 staff take incoming calls and triage the calls to the appropriate Tier 2 staff for resolution.  

• Tier 2 are trained staff who can address most problems using the tools available to them and the Agency-
provided VPN connection to the Agency’s SallyPort©IL application.  

• Tier 3 staff are Software Engineers or Programmers who may have to initiate a bug patch or hot fix if the 
issue reported proves to be more than can be addressed via phone or remote access.  

On average, support calls are answered immediately by a live person and there is no call wait time. Support calls are 
triaged by Tier 1 staff to appropriate Tier 2 personnel. The company is sufficiently staffed to respond to all Critical 
severity calls immediately; however, the average support call is a Medium or Low Severity level, and on average, 
those are handled within 10-15 minutes. 
 
SallyPort©IL includes an embedded help feature, but with the Unlimited Support Plan, agencies can be confident 
that when they require additional assistance, they can rely on Black Creek Support Staff to resolve any issue that 
arises, anytime of the day or night. 
 
 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

USE Department LETTERHEAD | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- XXXX  |  Email: XXXXXXXXX      

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Gary Caruana 
Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:  October 27, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement for 

Regional Board of Education School Resource Officer Program 
 
County Code:       Not Applicable  
   
Board Meeting Date:    October 27, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    No                                         Appropriation Amount:   $195,709 
If not, explain funding source:   Regional Office of Education 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   24000               Budget Impact:   $195,709  
 
Background Information: The Boone-Winnebago Regional Office of Education contacted the 

Sheriff’s Office to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement for 
a School Resource Officer at Summit Academy.  The School 
District will be reimbursing the County 75% of the total cost of the 
Deputy’s salary and benefits.  They will also be reimbursing the 
County for a vehicle, training and all equipment needed for a new 
deputy.  We will be invoicing the District for all over-time 
expenses. 

 
Recommendation:    
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:       
 
Follow-Up:   Not Applicable 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: October 27, 2022 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

 
1. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 

County Treasurer the following: 
 

a. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances – September, 2022 
b. Collateralization Report – as of September 30, 2022 
c. October 1, 2022 Investment Report 

 
2. County Clerk Gummow received from Mediacom a letter to inform on or about November 

15, 2022, Mediacom will implement programming changes and rate adjustments.  

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Thomas Hodges
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution to Fund American Legion Property Repairs w/ARPA Phase IV Funds
	Resolution to Fund Children's Advocacy Center w/ARPA Phase IV Funds
	Resolution to Fund Habitat for Humanity Housing Plan w/ARPA PHase IV Funds
	Resolution to Fund Northern IL Food Bank w/ARPA Phase IV Funds
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winnebago entitled Stoltz vs. Winn. Cty.
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winnebago entitled Cook vs. Winn. Cty.
	Ordiance to Amend Budget for Crisis Co-Responder Team Program
	Ordinance to Amend Budget for Summit Academy SRO
	Ordinance to Amend Budget for Upgrades for EOC & ESDA Director Vehicle 
	Resolution Awarding ARP Funded Admin. Bldg. Carpet Replacement
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for General Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for IMRF Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Cty. Hwy. Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Cty. Bridge Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Federal Aid Matching Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Health Dept. Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Tort Judgment & Liability Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Social Security Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Veterans Assistance Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Detention Home Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Historical Museum Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Nursing Home Operations Fund
	Ord. to Authorize Levy of Property Taxes in FY 2023 for Childrens Advocacy Fund
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution to Grant $5,000 from Host Fees to RACVB to Support 2022 Stroll on State
	Resolution Approving ARP Funds for Economic Impact Program 
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Establishing County Holiday Schedule for 2023
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agrmt with AmWINS Group Benefits
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agrmt with Northern Illinois Health Plans
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agrmt with BCBS 
	Resolution to Establish River Bluff Nursing Home Board of Directors
	Public Works Committee
	(22-037) Ordinance
	(22-038) Resolution
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Awarding New Jail Management Software
	Resolution Approving IGA for Regional Board of Education School Resource Officer Program
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



